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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that 16" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of
MindChampion Learning Systems Limited will be held on Wednesday, 11" day of July 2018, at
9:30 A.M. at the registered office at 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor, Guru Ravi Das Marg, Kalkaji,
New Delhi-110019 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2018, together with the Reports of the Auditors and the
Directors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay K Thadani (DIN:00042527), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. P Rajendran (DIN:00042531), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor

To Consider and it thought fit, to pass, with and without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the
remuneration, as approved by the Board of Directors and set out in the Statement annexed to
the Notice convening this meeting, to be paid to the Cost Auditors appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company, to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the financial
year ending March 31, 2018, be and is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary,
proper or expedient in order to give effect to the above resolution and for matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto.”

By Order of the Board
For MindChampion Learning Systems Limited

Sd/-
Date : May 11, 2018 P Rajendran
Place : Gurugram Chairman

DIN: 00042531
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NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

PROXY FORM DULY FILLED IN AND COMPLETED IN ALL RESPECT IN ORDER TO BE
EFFECTIVE MUST BE LODGED WITH THE COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE
NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE
MEETING.

Register of Directors’ Shareholding shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of
the Company during normal business hours except Saturday’s and Sunday’s up to and
including the date of AGM.

Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed
herewith.



Statement pursuant to the provision of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

The Board at its meeting held on July 12, 2017, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, has appointed Ramanath lyer & Co., Cost Accountant as the Cost Auditor of the
Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 at the remuneration of Rs.1,37,500/- plus taxes and
out of pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Accounts) Rules, 2014 or any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof, the remuneration as mentioned above, payable to the cost auditor is required to be
ratified by the Shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relative are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out in item no. 4.

The Board recommends the resolution for your approval.

By Order of the Board
For MindChampion Learning Systems Limited

Sd/-
Date : May 11, 2018 P Rajendran
Place : Gurugram Chairman

DIN: 00042531



BOARD'S REPORT

To
The Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 16" Annual Report of your Company along with
the Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2018,

Financial Highlights
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) from April 1, 2017 with a
transition date of April 1, 2016, The financial staterments has been prepared in accordance with

Ind AS as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rute 3 of the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended,

Dufing the year under review, your Company has recorded a total income of Rs. 618.34 million
and incurred a loss of Rs, (47.29) million, The summarized financial results are as under

(Amounts in Rs. Million

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 231, 2018 | March 31,2017 |

 Revenue from Operations 592.67 | 868.86

Other Income - 2567 1385

Total Income [ 618.34 882.81
Profit f (Loss) before tax (47.29) {16.92) |

Tax Expense 0.08 a

Net Profit / (Loss) (47.37) (19.92)

Dividend and Transfer to Reserves

The Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year under review, Your Company
has not transferred any sum to the general reserve.

State of the Company's Affairs

The Company provides education services in line with the curriculum to government
schools, It also provides curriculum based products and services to private schools
across India under nGuru brand. The portfolio of products has been expanded in the last
two years to include curriculum and assessment solutions for IT, Maths, Science and
English, This is apart from the MathLab, ERP and digital classrooms products it already
had developed. The focus of the Company has been to help children improve their
academic outcomes through a suite of offerings which includes subject courseware:
digital content, assessment platform and learning aids.

Future Plans

The Company shall continue to focus on improving the academic outcomes for children
white being asset light and IP driven, Through technology interventions, the products will
be updated and become adaptive o the learning needs of students. Your Company shall
deliver higher sales efficiencies. improved service and support, and improved internal
processes to tap the opportunity available in the market. This can help the company play
a larger role in improving learning outcomes for sehool children, and expand the network
of schools it works with.
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Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) Mr,
Vijay K Thadani and Mr. P Rajendran, Directars refires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment as Directors of
the Company.

During the year under review, Mr. Rahul K Patwardhan resigned from the directorship of the
Company with effect from the close of business hours on July 12, 2017, Further Mr. Sapnesh
Kumar Lalla and Mr. Amit Roy were appointed as Additional Directors of the Company by the
Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 10, 2017 and appoiniments were regulansed by
the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on July 11, 2017

All independent Directors have given confirmation that they meet the criteria of Independence as
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
As on date of the report, following officials are KMPs of the Company:

e  Mr. Gavin DA’'breo, Chief Executive Officer
s Mr. Umesh Kumar Gola, Chief Financial Officer

During the year under review, Ms. Neha Gandhi resigned as Company Secretary of the Company
w.e.f. January 05, 2018,

Meetings of the Board

The Board of Directors met Five (5) times in the financial year 2017-18, i.e. on May 10, 2017,
July 12, 2017, October 10, 2017, January 11, 2018 and March 23, 2018. The intervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act.

Audit Committee (AC)

In line with the statutory provisions of the Act and a5 a measure of good Corporate Governance
with a view to provide assistance fo the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, an Audit
Committee of the Directors was constiluted. More than two-third of the members of the
Committeg are Independent Directors and every Member has rich experience In the financial
sector. The Company Secrefary acts as Secretary to the Commitiee. Statutory Auditors and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company also attend the meetings by invitation. The
re_ﬂﬂmm;andatians- of the Audit Committee are placed before the Board for its consideration and
approva

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises the following members:

+« Mr Anand Sudarshan
+« Ms Lata Vaidyanathan
Mr Vijay Kumar Thadani

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The Momination and Reruneration Committee of the Company is constituted to identify persons
who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed In senior management, to
tormulate the criteria for determining gualification, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other empioyees, to carry out evaluation of other director's
performance. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is also entrusted to
frame policies and system for employee stock option plans and to formulate and administer the
company's Employee stock option plans from time to time. The remuneration policy of the
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Company is aimed to reward performance, based on review of achievements on a regular basis,

Mr. Sapnesh Kumar Lalla was inducted as a member of NRC w.e.f July 12, 2017 and Mr, Rahul
K F"Eiwgardhan ceased to be member of NRC consequent to his resignation. Currently, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committes comprises the following members:

»  Mr, Anand Sudarshan
Ms. Lata Vaidyanathan
Mr. P Rajendran

Mr, Sapnesh Kumar Lalla

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Company is aimed at rewarding performance, based on review of
achievements on a regular basis. The objective and broad framework of the Remuneration Policy
is to consider and determine the remuneration, based on the fundamental principles of payment
for performance, for potential. and for growth. The Remunération Policy reflects on certain
guiding principles of the Company such as aligning remuneration with the longer term interests of
the Company and its shareholders, promoting a culture of meritocracy and creating a linkage o
corporate and individual performance, and emphasizing on line expertise and market
competitiveness so as to attracl the best talent.

Annual Evaluation by the Board

Pursuant to the provisiens of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board has camed out the annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the
evaluation of the working of its Audit and Nomination & Remuneration Committees. A separate
exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the
Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and
contribution, effective participation in Board/Committee Meetings, independence of judgement,
safeguarding the interest of the Company providing expert advice to Board, deliberations on
approving refated party transactions efe.

Meeting of Independent Director

During the year under review, a meeting of Independent Directors was heid on March 23, 2018
in accordance to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act and rules thereto.

Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions of the Act (as amended
from time to time), M/s S R Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Gurgaon (FRN
101049WVW/E200004). were appointed by the members of the Company as Statutory Auditors of
the. Company from the conclusion of 157 AGM untill the conclusion of 20" AGM, subject to
ratification by members at each AGM of the Company. Pursuant to an amendment in Section 139
of the Companies Act, 2013, ratification of the such appointment of Statutory Auditors is no more
reguired at each Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the same is nol been taken up st this
Annual General Meeting.

Auditors' Report

The Report of the Auditors on the Annual Financial Statement of your Company for the Financial
Year 2017-18 forms parl of the Annual Financial Staterment and the same is seilf explanatory



Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has adequate system of internal control for planning, review, revenue recognition,
expenses authorization, capital expenditure approval, risk management, investments elc. The
Company is foliowing all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books
of acgounts and reporting of financial statement,

Deposits

In terms of the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act read with the relevant rules made
thereunder your Company has not accepted any fixed deposit from public.

Share Capital

During the year under réview, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from
Rs. 30 Crores to Rs. 80 Crores on August 4, 2017 held by NIIT Limited, the holding Company
500,000 Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debenrtures ("OCD") of Rs. 50 Crores were
converted into Equity shares of Rs. 50 Crores on August 4, 2017 Further 1,00.000 OCD of
Rs.1000/- aggregating to Rs. 10 crores were redeemed by the Company The Company
continues to be the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of NIIT Limited.

Particulars of loans, guarantee or investment
During the year under review, the Company has not granted any loan, guarantee or made
investment under section 186 of the Act.

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial yéar were on an arm's
length basis and were in the ordinary course of business, There are no materially significant
related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Direclors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large.

Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of
the Act in Form AOC-2 is attached as Annexure B. All Related Party Transactions were approved
by the Audit Committee and were also approved by the Board of Directors as a good Corporate
Governance.

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Research and
Development, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo and other information forming part
of the Board's Report in terms of Section 134({3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder:

a) Conservation of energy

Although the cperations of the Company are not energy intensive, the management has
been highly consclous of criticality of conservation of energy at all the operational levels
and efforts are made in this direction on a continuous basis. Adeguate measures have
been taken to reduce energy consumption whenever possible by using energy efficient
equipment. The requirement of disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of
energy as prescribed in Section 134(3)(m) ef the Act read with ruie B of the Companies
(Account) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company and hence are nat provided,

b) Technology absorption
The Company realizes that in order to stay competitive and avoid obsolescence, it would
have to invest in new technology acrass multiple product lines and services offered by it
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Hence the Company is conscientiously making every effort to develop methods for
adapting and effectively deploying new technologies.

Research and Development
The Company believes that technological obsolescence is a reality. Cnly progressive
research and development will help us to measure up to future challenges and

opportunities. During the year, no amount has been incurred on the Research &
Development.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

i) Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports,
development of new export markets for products and services and export
plans

In continuation of its efforts for-exports, the Company is exploring new market in
Middle East to offer the School Learning Solutions.
{i1) Expenditure and Earnings in Foreign Currency

During the year under review, the Company had foliowing foreign exchange
earnings and outgo:

' Particulars FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17
{In Rs.) (InRs.)
Foreign Exchange Earnings | 7.979,253 2,307,364
Foreign Exchange Oulgo | 148,085 284,230

Extract of Annual Return
The detaills forming parl of the extract of the Annual Returmn in form MGT-9 in term of Section
92(3) of the Act is annexed herewith as "Annexure A" and form part of this Report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

As required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Directors of the Comipany hereby state and
confirm:

that in preparation of annual accounts for the fimancial year, the applicable Accounting
Standards had been followed along with the proper explanations relating to matenal
departures;

that they had selected-such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as'to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March'31, 2018 and of loss of the Company
for that year,

that they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other rregularities,

that the Annual accounts had been prepared on a going concern basis

that they had devised proper systems to ensure comphliance with the provisions. of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively

Secretarial Standards

The applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. 55— 1 Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board
of Directors and S5 — 2 . Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by Institute of
Company Secretaries of India have been duly foliowed by the Company.
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Acknowledgement

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation of the support and
guidance received from valued Customers, Vendors, Bankers, Employees and the holding
company, NIIT Limited.

By Or
For MindChampion Learning $

rof the Board
tems Limited

Date: May 11, 2018
Place: Gurgaon

a]'endr:_an
Chairman
DIN: 00042531
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FORM NO. AOC 2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transactions under third proviso thereto

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

_____NOT

Annexure B

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
Name(s) Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms | Justificati date(s) | Amount | Date on
of the contracts / | the of the on for of paid as which the
related arrangeme | contracts/ | confracts or | entering | approv | advance | special
party and | nis/ arrarigeme | arrangement | into such | al by s, if any: | resolution
nature of | transaction | nts/ sor contracts | the was
relationshi | s transaction | transactions | or Board passed in
4] s including the | arrangem general
value, ifany | ents or l meeting as
transacti required
ons under first
proviso to
section 188
S— |
NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
Name(s) of the | Nature of Duration of the | Salient terms of the Date(s) of | Amount
related party contracts / contracts/ contracts or approval | paid as
| and nature of arrangeme arrangements/ | arrangements or by the advances
relationship nis/ transactions | transactions including the | Board , ifany:
transaction _|value, ifany
NIL
By Order of the Board
For MindChampion Learning System& Limited

Date: May 11, 2018
Place: Gurgaon :
DiN: 00042531
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Statutory Audit for the year ended March 31, 2018
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Ta the Members of Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Mindchampion Learning Systems
Limited (“the Company™). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Coniprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear then ended. and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the IND AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated m Section [34(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and lor
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS linancial statements based on ouraudit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act. the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. as specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the [nancial statements are free from
material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due 1o
fraud or error, In making those risk assessments. the auditor considers internal financ ial control relevam
to the Company”s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanees. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company s Directors. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
tatements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and aceording to the explanations given to us, the Ind
AS financial statements give the information réquired by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its loss including other comprehensive loss, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the
transition date opening balance sheet asat April 01, 2016 included in these Ind AS financial statements,
are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act,
read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the
year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 dated May 10, 2017 and May 9, 2016 respectively
expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial statements: as adjusied for the
differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which
have been audited by us,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order. 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Ceniral
Government of India in terms of sub-seetion (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
| a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Aet, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books:

{¢) The Balance Sheet. Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account:

{d) In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules. 2016,

(¢) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1. 2018, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31. 2018,
from being appoimted as a director in terms of sectiom 164 (2) of the Act

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrals over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 1o this report;
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{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending hitigations on its financial position i its
Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 5(v) 1o the Ind AS financial statemenis;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses,

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accuunlmﬂa

-
'b

Y

.

Membership Number: 400419 "k"\fa::.-hmgﬂ‘,
Place: Gurugram -

Date: May 11, 2018
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ANNEXURE-1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED

Re: Mindchampion Learning Systems Limited

(i) (a) The Company hias maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(ii)

(i)

{iv)

(vl

(vi)

(b}

(c}

details and situation ol fixed assects.

The fixed agsets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and
no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

According 1o the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immavable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(¢) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company,

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion.
the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification. Inventories lying with third partics have been confirmed by them as at
March 31, 2018 and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not granted any
l¢ans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act. 2013, Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (¢} of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
I 86 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon,

The Company has not aceepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 10 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of agcount maintained by the Company in respect of
products where, pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the maintenance
of cost records has been specified under sub seetion (1) of Section 148 of the Act, and are of the
opinion that. prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and mamntained.
We have not. however. made a detailed examination of the same.
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(vii) {a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues

(viii)

(ix)

(%)

(xi)

(x11)

(i)

(xiv)

(xv)

(b)

()

including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax. cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to sales tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise, value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given 10 us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other applicable statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
pavable,

According to the information and explanations given to us. there are no dues of service tax.
income-tax, goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture holder.

According te the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any mioney way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments/ierm loans
hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented

upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no [raud by the Company or fraud on the Company by the officers
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our vpinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section [77 and 188 of Companies Act. 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence. reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,
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{xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11. 2018
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ANNEXURE-2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MINDCHAMPION LEARNING
SYSTEMS LIMITED

Repert on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mindchampion Learning:
Systems Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in cenjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that dale.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidanee Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and il such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriite 1o provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal finaneial controls system over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference 1o these Ind AS financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, aceurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in sccordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finzncial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements, mcluding the possibility of cellusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also.
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 10 future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

It our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects. an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31,2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Insiitute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

*
For S.R. Batliboi & As
Chartered Accoup
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Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11, 2018
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UTZZ000L2PLOCE L1674
Statement of Frofit und Loss for the vear eaded
(AR waounts ey R (wssimals, anless stherwbse stied)

Nntes Murch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Ineame
Hevenise from operations” 14 SBTATI A4 BOE867 62
Cither ncpme 15 25668 87 13,953 00
Total income BIRI2.38 HE2.820.71
Expenses
Pisrchise of stock-in-trade 1004, 3 3 1018 088 65
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Ermployee benefits-expesises i3 2594, 140 53 4155993 44
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13 Fermaasirement of e delined benefit ohligntion (203 2418008
Chiher comm prebersive loss for the year, net of (261200 (231500
Total com prehersive lass for the yesr [ELRL PRk {31, 240.88)
Exrmings per equity share 5 .
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Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended

(ALl ambumits i B3 thousinids, inless otherwise st )

Mlarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
A, Cash Flow From Operating Aetivities:

Lass before exceptiondl ilems and 35 (47,292,535} (26552 6}
Adjustments for:

[eprectaton end amoTisaton 42,75 37 50,500 08

Provision for deabtful debis 30036 T 156360

Iventory writen of T writien back) 32102 (28] 23}

Unrealized foreien exchane (gamy loss 2250}, 2.4

Fimatice vost o, 6] 695 (e )

Emplayee share based payment expenses. 42177 206573

Imtengsa meome (BA65:71) (13,006 T
Profit on sale ol fixed assets 11588 861 (8 44

Profivon sale of corrent wvestment (H0.07)

126314 36 185, 187 50

Operating profit before working capital changes 12234 158,634,90
Chamngres in sperating assets and labilivies

Insrensi {docriase) in tride pavables (1526 73) & 151 (6

Inemehsed (doorease) inshors tenm pravisions 2451 |, 7RI RG

Inreases (decrease) in loag temm provisions {32 [H}) L1500

Inorease! (decrease) in dtler current Tibilitics (65614 359) {5,900 33)

Increased (thecrense) 1n other non-current financsal habilines: 311288 384630

Inoreass’ | decrease} in Other non-current habilities (#5542 (13,614 34)

Inerease’ (decresse) in other curnent lnancial liabilitres {4912 &) (17.281.19)

{1mcressis) docrease in current irade recéivilblss 17391612 216,218

{Incrzase) decrepss 10 ROD CHFTent Hidi eesivibleg 2IYR 55 TI 4564

{Increase)! docredss m mEntarics (23,104 46) 2,795 A2

{mcreise)! décreitse inother non-clirfent finncial dssits T 0 285206

(Increase) derehse in othis cowrment financiel isses AFA1288 134 427 5%

(Encrodse) decrease i other phn-curment assets 1250 {20.92)

(Incrensey! decredse i othier CUrTENE IBsiEs b T34 T 13225607 (B 3B} 54 1019, 47
Cush géncrated from operations 211,374,385 HED 644,47
Incoeme taxes paid et of cefund) (11,744 08 {26,667 37)
Met Cash Inflow from operating activities: (A) 19%,632.27 S25.977.0M)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:

Purchase of propurmy, plant and quipments {including capital work-m-

progress, intemaily devaloped intingibies and capital sivances) {38,795 fd) {34148 473
Proceeds from sale of propeny, plant dnd equipment 1605 57 285 H)
Iriterest received TAET S 284 57
et proceeds from sale of mutunl funds 90T

Recarpt of fixed deposis 177 43 £33 94}
Net Cash outflow from investing activities (B3 (35,235,006 (33,651.45)
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Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended

LA sihsoumts in R diousands, unlids otherwse sttesd)

Murch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
€. Cash Flow From Finoncing Activitles:
Payment of deferred lease alfigation (31,643 86) [¥2:383.33)
Repavmers of OCDs (refer note 1104 ¢ ) { 103,00 ey
Repaiments of bomowings (341,000 0 i
Interest purd on casl credit and borowings (39.005.37) (2552719
Receipn of inter corpotate deposits - TR 1
Repaymient of inter corporate deposits B {385, 200,00)
Expense for ssue 0F equity shars ¢apital (4,500 400 -
Net Cash putflow from Bnancing activities | © ) {235,18%.23) H05612.57)
Net Incressel{ Deerease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents {A)+ (B + (0] (0, T92.02) 8, T2
Cash and Cush Equivalents o the begistng of the financial vear 134,594 75 a7.891 52
Cash @od Cash Equivalents as 2t the end of the Gnancial year B3 N00.TF 150,504, 75
—— —
Reconeiliatzon of vash and cash equivalenis # per the cash flow stafemenl
Cassh anid Cash Equivalents os per abave comprise of the following | Mote 56 |
Bafance with Banks
“Current Accounts H3 B02 73 | 54,594 75
H3.802.7% 154,504.75
The aceompinying notes form an mtegeal pan of the these financial siatemens
A per aor repart of even dite:
L ,
For SR Batliboi & Associages LLP For and oo behalfl of the Board of Directors of
Frrm Registration Mo | kIR Mindehumpion Learning Systesns Limited
Chame it

5

Amit Ray
7 Dhrecior
Membership Mo $004 59 DN - D381 57
Ploce: Gurugram
Dhate: ‘May | 1, 2018

Plce. Gurugram
Date. May |1, 20018
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MINDUHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200D1.2000 PLCT 11674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Company Information

Mindehampion Leaming Systems Limited (Formerly known as Hole-in-the-Wall Education L1d1,  the Company') was sel up in 2001 and
was involved in the resenrch and development sctivities for the purpose of discovering the extent 1o which poor children in rural and slum
aréas in India can access and learn from web based curriculum using a porpose built Internet Kiosk'. Pursuant to-a Scheme of Arran eren,
the School Business Undertaking (51.8) of NHT Limited was transferred to the Company w.e.f May 23, 2015 from appointed date of April
1. 2014, Presently, the Company 15 primarily in the business of providing education services and other rehated solutions to schoals across
Indin, The registered place of husiness of the Company is: 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor, Gury Ravi PasMarg, Kalkaji. New Dethi - 110019,

Significant Accounting Policies
I'his note provides a list of the sipnificant seesunting policies sdopted in the preparation of thess financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied woall the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared 1o comply in all material respects with the blian Accounting Standard
(‘lnd AS') notiffed under section 133 of the Commpanics Acl 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Corporate AfTairs
{*MOAT),

Ihe said financial statements for the yesr ended March 31, 2018 ure the first Ind AS financial statements of the Compiny, The transition to
Ind AS has been cdrried oul from accounting standards nofified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph
7 of the Companies {Accounis) Rules, 2014 (*IGAAP"), which is considered as the Previous GAAP, for purposes of Ind AS 101, Refer
note 36 for an explamation of Kow the transition from previous GAAP 1o Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position. financial
perfiormance and cash flows.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, “Presentation of Financlal Statements” and
drvision [l of schedule T of the Companies Act 20130 Further, for the purpose of clarity, various fiems are ageregated in the Stalement of
profit and loss and balance sheer Nonetheless; these items are dissageregated separately in the notes w the fnuncial statements, whers
applicable or required. All the amounts included in the financial statements arc reported in thousand of Indian Rupees (*Rupees’ or *Rs.")
and are roundesd to the nearest thousands with two decimuls, except per share data and unless stated olbierwise.

The financial statements were authorzed for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 11, 2018,

Basis of measurement

The financil stements have been prepared ora historical cost busis, except for the fallowing:

* Financial assets and labilities (including derivative instroments) thot are measured ot fair value or mnortised cost
* Defined benetit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

= Share-bused payments {ESOP's)

Foreign currency translation

i. Functional and presentation currency

lems incladed in the financial statements: are messured using the currency of the primary cconomic environmenl in which the entity
operates (“the functionat currency ). The Gnancial stazemenms are presented in Indian rupee (Rs,), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency,

il. Transactions and balances

Forsien curreney tmnsactions are transkaied indo the functional currency using (he exchange rares at the dates of the ransactions. Foreign
exchunge gains and kosses resulting from the seitlement of such wanpsactions and from the ranstation of monetary assets and liabitites
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the stalement of profil or loss,
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL2001 PLCI11674
Naotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
Current - non-current elassification
Assets and liabilitics are ¢lassified into current and non-current as foliows:
Asgety
Anasset is classified a8 current when it satisfies any of the following eriteria:
= it &5 expected (o be realised in, or i intended for sale o consumption i, the Company s normal opersting cyole;
= it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
= itis expected 1o be realised within |2 months after the reporting period; or
* itis'cash of cash cquivalent unless it is restricied from being exchanged or used to settle a liahility for at least 12 months after
the reporting period. ,
Currenl assets include the current portion of non-current financial asseis. Al other assets {including deterned tax assets) are classified as
non-corment
Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following eriteria;
* iis expecled Lo be settled in the Company™s normal operating cyele;
* iUis hield primarily for the purposé of being traded;
= it a5 due to be seuled within |2 months after the réporting periad; or
* the Company: does not have an unconditional right to defer settlément of the Hability for a1 lenst |2 months affer the
reporting period. Terms of u fability that could. at the option of the counterparty, résult in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affeet its classification: '
Carrent liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities (inchuding deferred tax liabilities) are
classified as non-curment,
Operating cyele
The operating eycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents Based on
the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets ihr'pm_.:és'sing-;md their realisation in cash-and cash cquivalents, the
Compiny his ascertained its operating cyele being 4 period of 12 months for the purpose of classification of asses and liabilities s corrent
angd non- current.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured af the fair vilue of the consideration received or recervable. Amounts disclosed s revenoe gre net of felurhs, trade
allowances, rebates, discounts and taxes,

When twoor more revenue generting activities or deliverables are provided under o single arrangement, exch deliverible that is considercd
to b 1 separate unit of account is seconnted separately. For allocating the consideration, the Company has meusured the revenue in respect
of each eomponen of a transaction at its fair value, in accordance with the principles given in Ind AS 18, The price that is regularly charged
for am item when sold separaiely is the best evidence of its Ffair value. In cases where the Company is uahle to estahlish reliable evidence
of fair value, the Company has used either cost plus ressonable margin methed or residual methed to allocite the arrangement
consideration. In cases of residual method, the balance of the consideration, after allocating the fair values of identified components of a
transaction has been allocated w the remaining eomponents for which specific fair values do not exist

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be relinbhy measured, It is probuble that fuiure economic benefits will
Row to the entity and Speeilie criteris have been met for cach of the Company s activities os described below.

(1) Revenue in respect of sale of courseware is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership in itare ransferred 1o the
buyer as per the térms of the contracts.

(i} Revenue from the training services is recognised over the period of the course programs as the.case may be, For lxed-price contracts,
revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the 1eeal services to b
provided (percentage of completion method), Revenue from time and matenial contracts is recognised as the related services are performed.

{3ii) The Company undertakes fixed price projects for supply/ mstallation/ mainterance of hardware & infrastructuee set-up, providing
educational product and educationil services. Revenue from initial project set up activities & development of products under such comracts
s recegnised under proportionate completion method. The revenue in such contracts from sale of hardware is recoenised on delivery of the
hardware when substantial risks and rewards of ownership in such hardware passes to the customer based on contractual terms of the
respective confracts. Deferred Revenue represents umounts billed to customers in adviinge for products. services or subscriptions for which
ravenue 15 yel 1o be rg:é:)gnis&d.
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL20H PLC 11674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Other Income

Interest income from debt instruments is retognised using the cffective interest rate method. The eflective interest rate is the tate that
exactly discounts estimiated future cash receipes through the expected 1ife of the financial asser 1o the gross carmying amount of a financial
assel. When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by comsidering ull the contractual terms
of the finameial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, éall and similar options) but does not consider the expecied credit losses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In @ manner consistent with the intermal reporting provided o the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). The CEQ & CFO of the Company are considered as chiel operating decision makers who assesse the financial performance and
position of the Company, and make strategic decigions.

Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicahle income
tax rate in India adjusied by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilides attritbutable o emporary differences and to unused Ly losses,

Fhe current income tax charge is caleulatied on the basis of the lax laws engcted or substantively enacted in India 4t the end of the reporting
period. Management periodically evalustes positions taken in tax returns with réspéet to situations in which spplcable tax resulation is
subject 1o imerpretation. It establishes provisions where approprizte on the bidsis of amounts expected 10 be paid (o the tix authorities,
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability methiod, on temporary differences ariging bétween the tax bises of assets and
Hahilities-and their carrying amounts in the financial staterments. Deferred income s s determined using fax rates (and laws) that hive
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected w-apply when the related deferred income o
asset is realised or the deferred invome tax Hability is senled.

Diefierred tax assets are recognised for all deductible wmporary differenices and unused 1ax losses only if it is probable that future taxahle
amourts will be available 1o utilise thise wemporary différences and losses.

Current tax and deferred ax are recognizéd in Staternent of Profit and Loss. except to the extent that it refates o flens recognized in Other
Comprehiensive Income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is alse recognized in Other Comprehensive Income o dirsetly in cojuity, 45
the case may be,

Minimium Allernative Tax ("MAT?) credit entitlement under the provisions of the ncome-tax Act, 1961 is recomnised s o delirred tax
assel when iU is probable that future economic benefit associated with it in the fm of adjustment of future income tax liahility, will flow o
the Compariy and the #sset ¢an be measured reliably. MAT credit entitfement is-set off to the extent aliowed in the year in which the
Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax ries. MAT credit emtitlement is reviewed at cach reporting date and is
recoignised o the extent that is probable that filure tsable profits will be available against which they ean be used. MAT credit entitlement
has bean presented as deferred tax asset in Balance Sheet. Significant management judgement is required 1o determine the prabability of
recognition of MAT credit entitlenrent and deferred fax.

Leases

As a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, Las substantinlly all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classificd as finance leases. Fimance leases are capitalised ar the leasé’s ingeption at the fair value of the leased property or, if lowet, the
present vatlue of the minimum lease payments. The cerresponding réntal obligations, net of finance charges, are included in Bortowings o
other financial liabilitics ns appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to the profit or loss over the leass period so as 1o produce & constant periadic rate of intérest on the remaining balance of the liability for
cach period:

Leases in which a signilicant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not ransferred to the Company as lessee are clussified as
opefating lebses. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charped to profit or loss on o
straight-line busis over the period of the leise unless the payments ore structured o increase in line with expected general inflation 1o
compensate for the lessor's expected mflationary cost incroases.
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2Z0DL2MIPLCTIT6T4
Nuotes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 201%

Other financial assels

i} Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following meisirement catépiries

= those to be measured subsequently at fair valwe {¢ither through other comprehiensive income, or thrivugh profit of loss), and

= those mensured atamortised cost

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contactual terms of the cash Hows

For assets measured at fair value, sing ind losses will gither be recorded in profit or foss o other comprehensive income..

i) Measurement
AL imitial recognition. the Company measures a lnancial asset at its fair value, Any subsequent change in the fuir value is charged 1o profit
and loss.

iif) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected eredit losses associated with its assets Carried ot amortised cost. The
imparirment methodology applied depends on whether there has becn o significant increase in credit risk,

For trade receivables only, the Compuny applies the simplified approach permittied under Tnd AS 109 “Financial Instruments”. which
Fequires expected lifetime losses o be recognised from initial récognition of the teceivahles,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of vash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held s call with
financial institutions. other short-term, highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject 10 an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafl are shown as harmoewings in
currént financial liabdities in the balance sheet

Trade receivables
Tride receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently adjusted for expected eredit loss using the effective interest

Inventories: Traded soods

Traded goods are stated a1 the lower of cost or net realisable value: Cost of traded goods comprises cost of prrchases and gl sther cosis
incurred in bringing the mventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis
of first-in firstout basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts, Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

{ This space has béen intentionally lefi blank)
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MINDUHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UFT2200DLZ001PLCIT1674
Mates to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Froperty, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items-of property. plant and equipment-are stated at historical cost less depreciation,
Historical eost includes expenditure that is directly altributable 1o the acguisition of the items.

Subsequent costs dre included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as & separate assel. as approprisie; onlv when it is probable thit
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 1o the Company and the cost of the tiem can be measured reliably, The carrving
ampunt of any component secounted for s & separite asset s de-recognised when replaced. All ather repairs and maintenance are charped
to profit or lass during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Transition ta Ind AS

On wransition o Ind AS. the Company has elected (o continue with the net carrving value of all of i property, plant and equipment
recognised asa Apal 1, 2016 measured as-per the previous GAAP and use that et carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residusi value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate thiir cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives
s follows:

Description of Assets Useful life

Plant and Equipment including:

= Computers, Printers and related Aceessories 3 Yesrs

= Computer Servers umd Networks 3 Years

- Electronie Equipments 8 years

- Air Conditioners 11} years

DfTice BEquipment 3 vears

Furniture & Fixtures 7 wears

Leasehold Improvements 3:5 yeary or lease period. whichever is
lower

Asseis acquired under lease (Included under Plam & Equipment and Fumniture & Fisiures) R u:;if,hﬁ Whierer i

Rates prescribed under Schedule I 1o

All other ssseis (ineluding vehicles) E :
the Companies Act, 2013

Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis on the straight line method over the wseful lifes of the assets, Thie depreciation charge for each
period is recognised in the stitement of profit and foss . The residual values is considered as nil

Phe sscts” residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriste. at the end of each reporting period,

An assel’s carrying mmount is written dewn immediately (o s rédoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is gréater than s
estimated recoverable ambunt '

Guains and losses on dispesals are determined by cotfiparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other
iingd (losses).

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT220DL2PLCI 1674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
Intangible assets
Computer software & Educational content/products - Aggiired
Shiown anacguisition costand are subsequently curried af cost less accumulated amortisation and impairmeet losses
Education content / produets - Internally generated
Development costs that are: direetly anributable o the design, develpoment and testing of identifishle and unique educational content /
pradugts controlied by the Compary are recognisid as intangible assers when the fallowing criteria are met:
= it 35 lechnically feasible ro complete the developrient so that it will be available for use,
* management intends to complete the coment / product and use:
= there 15 ap ability to-use or sell the content / product;
* itcan be demenstrated how the content / product will generate probable future econamic benefiis,
» adequate technical, financial and other resources 10 complete the development and to use or sell the content / product are available, and
* the expenditure attributable 1o the content / product during its development cai be reliably measured.
Directly afiributable costs that are capitalised as part of the mtangibles include emplovee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads,
Eapitalised development costs ane recorded as intangible assets and amertised from the point at which the asset is aviilahle for use,
Amuortisation methods and periods
Intangible assets are smortised on a siraight line basis over their estimated usefud lives which gre s follows:

Particulars Useful lifies
internally penerated (Content and products)

= School based non-T1T coment 10 years

- Others 3-3 vears
Avguired {Software, content and products) 3=5 viars

Transition to Ind AS .
Un trumsition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the net carrying value of all of intangible asscts recopnissd as at April 1,
2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and ise that net carrying valug as the deemed cost of Intangible ussets,

Impairment of a5sets

Assels are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the earrying amount may not be recoverable,
An impairment loss is recomnised for the amount by which the asset’s camrying amount excesds its recoverable smount. The recoverable
arnount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in wse For the purposes of Assessing impament. gsiets ure
Companied at the lowest fevels for which there arc separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or Companys of assets (cash-enerating units), Non-financial assers that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment o the end of cach reporting period.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates wsed 10 determine the recoverable amount, Such 2 reversal is
fiade only (o the extent that the asset’s carying amount does ot exceed the carrving amount thit would have been determined. net.of
depreciation or smortisation, if ne impairment loss had been recopnised.

Trade and other payahles

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial vear which are e,
Frade and wihier payables are presented as current labilities unless payment 15 not due within 12 months afier the reporting period They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured ot amortised gost using the effective mterest method,

{This space has been inteaticnatly left blank)
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UTZZ80DL2001 PLCI 11674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
Borrowings
Borrowings are imitially recognised at fair value, net of trmzaction costs incwrmed. Borrowings are subsequently measored at amortised cost.
Any difference hetween the proceeds (nét of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the ¢ffective interest method, Feed paid on the éstablishment of loan facilities are recognised us transaction costs of
the loan tothe extent that it is probable thid some or all of the facility will be drawn down In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down oceurs, To the extent there is no evidence that it is probablie that some or all of the Taeility will be drawn down, the fge is copitalised
s g prepayment for lquidity services and mmortised over the period of the facility to which it relates, '
Borrowings are removed from the talance sheet whin the obligation specified in the contract is discharged. cancelled or expired. The
difterence between the carrving amount of a financial Hability that has been extinguished or transferred o another party and the
consideration paid, includmg any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed. is recognised in profit or loss 4s other paing/(losses),

The fair value of the Hability portien of an optionally convertible debentures is determined ysing o market interest rate for an equivalent non
convertible debentures (OCDS), This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost hasis until extinguished on conversion or
redemption of the debentures, The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity porion of the compound instrument. This 1s
recognised und included in sharcholders™ equity, net of income tax effects, and not subscquently remeasured,

Borrowings are clussified as current Habilities unless the Company has an unconditional right 1o defer setlement of the liability for at least
12 minths afier the reporting period. Where there is-a breach of a muserial provision of 2 long-term foan areangement on or before the end
of the reporting period with the effect that the ligbility becomes payable on demund on the reperting date, the emity does not classify the
liahility as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting perind and before the approval of the finencial statements for fssie. not fo
demand payment as a consequence of the hreach

Provisions

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used 1o determine the present value s a pre-tax e thal refleets current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the Lability, The increase in the provision due to the passage of time i
recagnised us inlerest expense,

{ This space has been intentionally left blank
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL20MPLCIL1674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
Employee benefiis
i) Short-term obligations
Laabifities for wages and salaries. including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 mimths afier the end of
the peried in which the emplovees render the refated service are recogn ised in respect of emplovees” seevices up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured a1 the amouits expected to be paid when the liabilitics are settled, The linbilitics are presented as current emploves
henetit obligations m the balance sheet.
ii) Other long-term emplovee benefit obligations
The Habilities for eamed leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the ead of the period fn which the
employees render the relited service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expeeted future payments o be made in respect
of services provided by employecs up o the end of the reporting peried using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted
using the market viclds at the end of the reporting pericd thar have terms approximating 1o the terms of the related abligation.
Remeasurements as u résalt of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in profit or loss,
The obligations-are presented as current liabilities in the balince sheet if the entity does not kave an unconditionu right to defer settlement
for a1 teast twelve months afier the reporting period, regardiess of when the actual settlement is expected 10 oceur.
iii} Fost-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-cmployment schemes;
- Defined benefit plans such as Gratudry and Compensated absence,
- Dedined contribution plans such a5 Provident fund, Superannuation fund, Pension fund and National Pension gysteim
Giratuity
The liability or assct recognised in the halunce sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the [4ir value of plan assets, The defined benefil obligation is caleubated annuully by
actuaries using the projected unit eredit method,
The piresent value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash cutflows by reference to marke
iclds at the end of the reporting period on government honds that hive terms approximating to the terms of the welated obiigation.
The net imterest cost is caleulated by applying the discount rite to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets. This cost i included in employee benefit expense In the statemient of profit and loss,
Rizmeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and chimges in actuarial assumptions are tecognised in the period in
which they oceur, dircetly in other comprehensive income. They are ineluded in retained camings in the statement of chamges in equity and
in the balance sheet
Changes in the present value of the defined henefit obligation are recognised immediately in profit or loss s past service cost.

Compensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated shsences is provided for both encashable leave and those expeeted 1o be avdiled The Compény has
defimed bencfit plans for compensated absences for employees. the Hability for which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at
the end of the year using prajected unit credit method, Any gain or loss arising oul of such valuation is recognised in the Starement of profit
and loss as income or expense as the case may be.

Avcumulated compensited absences, which are expected 1 be availed within twelve months from the end of the year are freated as shorn
term emplovee benefits. The obligation towards the same is mieasured at the expected undiscounted cost of secumulited compensated
absences expeeted to be availed based on the unutilized enfitlement at the year end.

Provident fund

The Company makes contribution to the “NIUT LIMITED EMPLOYEES' PROVIDENT FUND TRUST™ for cerain entiies. in Imcliss,
which is u definad benefit plan 1o the extent that the Ciompany has an obligation o make good the shortfall, ifany, besween the retum from
the investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. The Company’s obligation in this regard isactuarially determined wsing projecred
uniit eredit method and provided for if the circumstances indicate that the Trust may not be able to gencrate adequate returns to cover the
(nterest rates notified by the Government.

The Company's contritrution towards Provident Fund is charged o Stawement of Profit and Loss

{This space has been intentionally 16f blank)




MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT220DL200 1 PLCI LIR74
Notesto the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
Superannuation
The Company makes defined conriburion, 1o the Trust esublished for the pumose by the company wwards superitnuation fund maintained
with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company hag no further oblipations beyond its monthly contributions, Contribution made
during the year is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss,
Pension Fund
Fhe Company makes defined contribution (o 4 government administered pension fund towards t's pension plan on behalf of its employees:
Ihe Company has no further obligations bevond its monthly contributions. The contribution towards Emplovee Pension Scheme is chiarged
to-Statement of Profit and Loss,
Nitional Pension System
The Company makes defined contrfbution rowards National Pension System for certain employees for which Compuny has no further
obiligation. Contributions made during the vear are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

( T'his space has been intentionallv left blank)
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200D L2200 PLT TN 1674
Notes to the Financial Stutements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Share capital

Equity share capital

Issttunce of ordinary shares are recognised as equity share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly anributable to the isssance of new
equity shares are recognized &5 a deduction from equity, net of any tax, effects,

Earnings per share

ij Basic earmings per share

Basic camings per share is calculaied by dividing the profit anributable 1o owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the financial vear, '

i) Diluted earnings per share

Crifuted eamings per share adjusts the Hgures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take. into account:

= the after income tax efféct of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, angd

= the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have heen outslanding assaming the conversion of all dilutive
potentitl equity shares.

Fair value measarement

Fair value is the price that would be received sl an asset or paid 1o tramsfer a lability in an orderly. ransaction berween market
participanes at the measurement date. The fair value measurcment is biased on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or
tranzler the liability takes place either!

=1n the princtpal market for the asset or ligbility, or

= In the ahsence of o principal market. In the mest advantageous market for the asset or lability

The principal or the most advantageous market muest be accessible tor by the Company,
All assets and liabilities For which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial stitemesnts are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the {air value messurement s & whole-

Level It Level | hierarchy includes finuncial instruments measared using quoted prices: This includes, listed equity instruments. traded
bonds and mutual funds that hive quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock
exchanges is Valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds e valued using the closing net asset value:

Level 2: The Tair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreipn exchange forward contracts) is
determined vsing valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely a4 little as possible on entity-specific
catimates, [all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are ohservable, the instrurment is inclisded in level 2.

Level 32 If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on ahservable marker daty, the instrument is included in level 3. This i5 the

-case for unlisted equity securities. contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in jevel 3,

For assets and Tabilities that tre recognised in the financial statements ona recwrring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by reassessing categorisation {bused onthe lowest leved Input that s significand 1o the Bir valie
measurernent as o whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpsse of fair value diselosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and tisks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarehy as explained above.

The Company measures financial ingtruments, such as, investments (other than investment in subsidiariesh, a1 fair value ar ich reporting
date.

Critical accpunting estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements. management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the asplivation of
sccounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospeetivily
[nformition about signiticant areas of estimation/uncertwinty and judsements in applying aceounting policies that kavee the most sigmificant
elfect on the financial statements arc as follows:

Measurement of defined benefit oblipations:: key actuarial assumptions - refer note 2 (s).

Measurement of pseful life and residual values of preperty, plant and eguipment - refer nose 2 (m),

Fair value measurement of Minancial mstruments - refer note 2 (v

Judgement required 1o determine probabality of recognition of deferred rax assers and MAT credit entitiement - refer tote 2 gl

I'here are po major assumpiions and estimation that bave a significant risk of resulting in a material adjusonent within the next Gnaneial
year.
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: U72200D L2001 PLC111674 _
Nates to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Recent accounting pronouncements
Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

INDY AS TE3, Revenue from Contragl with Customers : On March 28, 2018, the MCA sotitied the IND AS 115, The core pringiple of this
IND AS i that an entity should recognize revenue to dépict the transfer of promised ponds of services 0 customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration o which the entity expects 1o be entitled in exchange for those poods and services, Further the new standard
reduires enhanced disclosures about the natre, amount, timing and uneertinty of revenue and cash flows arising from the enfins contracts
with customers.,

Ind AS 115, establishes a five-siep model 10 sceount for revenue arising from contrits with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is
recognised at an-amoun that reflécts the consideration to which an entity expects 10 be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
SErVICES 10 a customer.

The mew revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requinrements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue 1o
b recopnized when promised goods or services are transfermed 1o customers in amounts that reffect the consideration to which the Company
expects o be entitled in exehinge for those goods or services. Adoption of the new rules could affect the timing of revenae recognition for
eertain transactions of the Company, Ind AS 115 is effective Tor the Company in the first quarter of Gscal 2019 using either one of two
metheds: (i) retrospectively 10 euch pribr reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 dccoumting Policies, Changes
Accouinting Extimares and Erveps | with the option v elect certain practical expedients as defined within tnd AS 115 {the full retrospective
method: or (i) reirospeetively with the cumulative efféct of initially applyving Ind AS 115 recognized a1 the date of initial dpplication (]
April 201 8 and providing certain additional disclosures as defined in Ind AS 115 {the modified retrospective method),

The Company continues 1o evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The ultimate impact on revénue
resulting from the application of Tnd AS 115 will be subject 1w sssessments that are dependent on many variables, cluding. bat not fimited
to. the terms of the contractual arangements and the mix of business. The Company's considerations also include. but are nat lintiied o,
the camparability of its financial statements and the comparability within its industry from application of the new standard to its contractual
arrangements, The Company hins estiblished an implementation team to implement Ind AS 115 related 1o the recognition of revenue from
contricts with customers and it continues 1o evaluate the changes to accounting system and processes, and additional - disclosure
requirements that may be MECEssary '

Upon adoption the Company expects there to be a change in the manner that variable consideration in certuin revente arfan gements {5
recpgnized from the current practice of recognizing such revenue as the servives are performied and the varkable consideration Is earned 1o
estimating the achievability of the varizhle conditions when the Company hegins delivering services and recognizing that amount ovér the
contractual period. The Company also expects a change in the manner that it recognizes certin incrementzl und fulfilmient costs from
expensing them ay incurred to deferring und recognizing them over the contractusl pariod. A reliable estimate of the quantitative frmpact of
Ind AS 115 on the financial statements will only be pussible once the implementation project has been completed

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




MINIMCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DL2001 PLOC 111674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear entled March 31, 2008
(Al ameamts i Rs: thousands, unless othwrwise stated)
3 _Property, Plunt sl Equipment

5 Plant & Leusehold Furnitire & eeona .

Particnkars Equipments Improvements Fistures Office Equipments Tutal
Vearend March 31, 2017
Giross carrylng amouni
Dizerrnsd oot as ul Apnl 12016 50,445 56 352 4o 3A3302 3757 EI 20,05
Addditioms IHE0 k2 . - - EWA TR
Chisprsals 13402 55 LR IRT4 01 13,43) .32
Closing Gross Carrying Amdunt 4073283 35LAA 3.104.28 27.56 4421755
Accumulated Depreclation
Deprectation charged during the vear 3433800 145 8 214124 iz 314408
[Msposalz 1323543 - - - 13,233.48
Closing aceumulated deprecistion 2160453 145,81 21,041.24 24102 L3IIET0
Met Carrying Amant 19,128.30 HIT.0T 963,04 F44 20301185
Year eowd March 31, 2018
Grossing Carrying amount
CIDERING @ross carmy kg emount-as-at April |,
mz 40,732 43 132 8K 310428 T 56 4421755
Adiditions ZITEDE - 46815 ERSD )
Disposals 1447 0:a3 1.0 .01 E552
Chsing Gross Carrying Amount 43,491,432 35285 357162 1788 A7 443,34
Accomulated Deprecintion
Uprening secumilated depreckation 21.604.53 145 81 L4029 2412 13.918.70
[réprecistion charged during the venr Iobas 17 136 36 ui| 7§ 292 1771723
Erapsiels 203 . o 5 T
Closing secumalated depreciation 3824867 IHL17 307302 2704 1,6,
Met Carrying Amount 524265 7068 AUR.60 .51 EM12.44

{ Tlua spisee has Been imtenmonally left blank )
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MINDUHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED

CIN: UT200DL 2801 PLO 1T 167
Motes to the Financial Sttements for the venr ended March 31, 2008

[ armousis 0 B, thinsands, miess otherwise siated)

Intungible Assets
Educationil Coatent! Producis Software ) fpagible Aies
. Total Intangibies Total Intangiies
Purticuliss imterwally . other thag assets S inchiding asset
Acquired Grenerated Anguired i T et Development B

{faotmote 1) = TORIEE  ihioepie) . IET Rerdpmcst
Year end March 31, 2017
Lxross carrylng umount
Droemed cost as i 01 Agnl, 2916 18 Ty, B0 4| 505510 HLEB2.19 . BLG62.19
Addicions 5 2] 44375 G338 1237759 2241443 45,192,001
Disposals - - 3589 LER S B33 K=
Transfer - . - - 44375 244373
Closing Gross Carrying Amopm .13 9805066 505509 T 105,53 137067 T4, 4 Th.n0
Accumubsted Amortisathon and
Fmpairment
Amartisanon charge for the year - 1795240 4464 41 L Al6H0 - L2A16.50
Disposnds - . Q33 84 033.84 B33 84
Chming acewmulated amortisition - 1795249 353057 21,483 06 = 2148306
Net Carrving Amaount 1% BO098, 17 1,534.52 A1,622:87 137067 R2,993 44
Yeur end Nurch 31, 2014
Lrross cacrying wmasnnt
Chpsifieng, groms wmouni 14 R D50 A6 3 055 (e T3, 16593 L. 3767 1ML 660
Adelitiong - - - 36 A5 Y B I N
[Hsposals - i1 3:21 an 3.22
Closing Gross Carvying Amount [INE] 98050165 305188 13102, 71 $4.206.35 DAL 0906
Accumulated Amortisation and
Impairment
Cipening accumuiated dépreciation . 17952 44 333057 21.453.06 21,443,106
Amomsaton charge for the year - AT L4 68 5034,14 - 25,034, 14
l'lm-ilg Itﬁlm'llltﬂi amoriisalion - 4157198 045,22 A6 81T . 46,517 20
Nt Carryving Amount 18 S5 478,67 | i, il 56,585.51 38,204,355 594.791.86

(1] Refer Nete 39 for cost ineurred dung the year on micrmally generated intongible assees

(This spsaie has been indentionally feft bEank)
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Lgss Prosaman for dowbtful Sebs
Leital

Orther Flnancial Assets
Serimity Deposits Recoivable
Securel, consdered poed
UlpboiThod Bawmmue
Inketest Receivable
Cither Revenvahles
L term deposits with bamk
= With peagrme] maatumty of more than [2 montls:
Tistal

Cosh And Cash Equivalents

Balamce with banks
et Adeonnie
Cheqires and drafs on lusd

Total

Bank bidance other than alsive

MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: DT200DL2001FLCT 1674
Nobes to the Financial Statenvents fur the year ended March 31, 2018

{ AL nmoiam m R4 thousands, unlss olherwdse stited)

Creposin with origmnl mamurny of neove then 3 monthe and upro 12 monits

Total

Contingent Lisbilitkes

Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 20046 March 31, 2 S March X1, 20T Aprl 1, G
Mon Cwrreni Current
42515 237N 74,065 4 2909448101 RN 45 TIE 210 6%
- . - 11741637 151 484 56 127,529 6%
= - (117406.32) (151 449 54) (127520 4lly
415,15 TITLTH 74,060 T EIH AR ARHBAD,49 Tiddi469
As i
March 31, 214 March 31, 20T April 1, 2008 March 31, 2018 Murch 31, 2007 Agwil 1, 2006
Mo L wrreni Carient
|,508 75 |, 22767 45394 LTI [RELEEEE | {25 08
. 1076 a7 43018 FEIEE 0 05 350,45 124425
£ . L 2508 315 2454
= - - - I3, 5% A
2730 A543 29243 - -
1,816 05 263036 544843 40,0 14 b 4 ER.HG 23085384
As al
March 31, 2018 Miirch 31, 207 April 1, 2016
LHE SRR 132067 63 G T RT3
3,495 252703 3, 70256
83.802.73 L5455 TS (R TEF)
As ok
March 31, 208 March 31, 32017 April 1,206
. 35811 35800
- S84 11 338,11

Cther muney for which the Company is contingently linbie
. Ciainsaioes issned ke bankers ousianding ar the end of e vear mmomting 1o Ba. 39,0400 96 thoasand (Frevions venr Rs 12165 16 dhesind
i Corporare Cunranigs saaed by NIT Limited re Baoks on behalf of the Compray for s 430.000.00 thousend { Previons vear Fos 4 50000 00 ez

b, Capital and ether commitments
(u} Extimastend ot of contricts renaining 10 be execuied on capisnl noomint (net of advances) nol provided for NIl Previous vesr e | 387 24 thonsand |
(b | The Evmypeny had.cenain cotrests with State Governments and schools under which the Company was reguieed o mnsfer ownesship of e fed ssets and equipmesls dider
W iry, arraa gemeis o the wrigien dowin salue which s expecied to be st nomiral value, af the end of the Comrsst temm

(T 3pace kas been mdemtyanndly kit biank)




MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2Z00D L2001 PLCLI 6T
Motes to the Firanciil Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

6 Deferred tax assets (Net) (AL umounes in Rs. thousands, snless otherwise stated)
As ut
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 31 March 2018 3 March 2017 1 April 2006
Minimum altermate tax eredit cntitlément 17.822.67 12.556.54 -
MNet Deferred tax assets 1TRIZ.67 12,556.54 -

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets
Minimum alternate tax credit

entitlement
Opening balance as at April 1, 2016 2
l'ax income/{expense b recopnised during the vear 12.556.54
Closing balance as at March 31, 2017 12,556.54
Tax mcome/fexpense ) recognised during the year 5.266.13
Closing balance as at March 31, 2018 17,822.67

MNotes §
a) Deferred tax assets on hrought forward losses has not been recognised in absence of availability of taxable income to set off the losses,
Dreferred tax assels on timing differences has not been recogmised-on gecount of prudence,

{This spizce has been mtentionally feft blank)




MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT224001.2001 PLC111674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(All amouns in Rs: thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Asat
7 lnventories March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
As at the-end of the vesr
Traded Goods
a) Education and Training Material®
- Othiers 13 68760 13.333.23 1345827
b Software 729.71 1,280.82 L7317
34.417.31 14.623.05 17,137.44
As at the beginning of the year
Traded Goods
#) Education and Training Material
= Oithers 13.333:23 15,458:27 11,361 .94
b} Software 1.289.82 1.679.17 152722
14,623.05 17,137.44 13.289.16
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory (19,.794.26) 1514.39 {3.848.28)

* Net of provision for non-moving inventories of Rs 5,185.41 thousand ( Previous vear Rs 1,975.21 thousand)

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTENS LIMITED
AN DTRG0 LT 1 16T
Mntes 10 the Feanoal S4ndements for the year seded March 31, 20108

[ A ot o s, (howsands, anless atheris stitsl)

L LEL]
March 10, MK v ch 31, 2017 Aprid |, 2008 Mardh 51, 2018 Mareh 3122017 Aprit 1, 20
Ml - curpest Carrem
b 7458 15740 =
9803 ST I5T, 50 - -
I8 15.0x1 1804 17225 ™ 10030 LS 31,049 36
o - 2 2 hon s A5 13
L2508 pE) 12, 10K B4y Ph 420 126
1140 ASBN 1808 17,225, 7% FULBSH, b Il 0454
M2 T2
1664 6} 668 Ty
- M FT34 = .
91334 87 LERA L S04 B -
[T 822 67) (L3558 343 -
TTEILES TLE2 0 Sa St A
- : - BRG] -
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MINDUHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITEDR
CIN: UT2I00D0 2001 PTCI G674
Maotes 1o the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2004

(Al nmounts RS, thousands, anless ctherwise stited )

% Eqaity share cupital
u} Authorized equity share capital

Equity shares Redecmable prefercnce shires
it
Pasticulars Number of Amaunl Number of Amount
shares shares
Asat Apeil B1, 2016 20,000, 000 UMY, DI B4 1400048 M IR
Az at Mareh 31,2007 20,000,040 UM, 003, D LLTRLTE TR JO .00
Increase during the year 510000 () 0000000 = =
As st March 31, 2018 il XU TO0,004.00 LR 14081, £, (D

b) Movement in eguity shore capital

Equity shares

Parngulars Number of Amonai
shares

Ay at April i, 2006 14,64 072 150,640, 72

Asat Marel 31,2017 19064072 T, T2

Increase during the year SO0 O SAHD N0, %)

Ax at March 31, 2008 BO64,072 694,641, 72

o) Terms! rights attached o equity shares

TheComparny has ome class of cquity shares having i par value of Rs. 1} per share. Fach shareholder 15 eligible for one vote per share held The
drvidend proposed By the Board of Direckors s stibject to the spproval of the shareholders m the ensuing Annual General Mlerting. except in cise
of wsnm dvidend [n the event of hguidatron, the equity sharcholders-aie eligible o receive the remaining, sssets of the Company wfer
distribistion of 4l peeterential amounts, in propbriicn to their shareholding

d} Details of Sharchelders holding more than 5% sharesin the Company

As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1. 2016
M. of shares: 2 of holding  No. of shares % of bolding  No. of shares % of holding
NI Emited 689,064 073 1B 19064077 100%% 1904002 101
Total 69,064,072 100 19,064,072 LM% 19,064,672 10455
Ehtof the above, & Bquity Shares are registored in the names of mdividaals, the bénsficial interest of which lies with the Holding L2 parry

cf Other details of equity shares for o peried of five vewes immedintely precediog Mareh 31, 2008

i) 18063065 sguiy share of Ba 10esch were allotted-an Judv &, 2005 to NOT Limited pursuant to-a Seheme of Armangement withoul pavirient
of cash

ih FHLO0000) eguity shares of Rs 10 emch wene alloted on'August £, 2017 to NI Limited by conversion of carlior ssued Opricmally
Convertible Dishentires.

['This space has Been mitesteonzlly beft blank )




MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
Ol T2 260 LT 11674
Metes v the Flusiclnl Staveiments for the yenr eaded Marek 30, 2018
TAH-amacrnts i Ry thaomsnnids, imless-ctherwder statad )

1 Dither Equity Asal
Murch 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 April |, 2016
Seewniies Preminnn Reserng 200,00 () 20,0000 08 203, GO (i
Potained Eamings (AL R (Rl L 1] (TR N
Eqigiey Instnasent of compound finmcial msmrmment 150,817 18 A1 e 82 TR R
COhlor oquiy. ' (4 5040000 | - -
Taral reseryves anid suruoy {hdd,610,53) {326,858, 7H) [3,614.58)
TiNT} Resirves And Sarplus March 31, 2008 March 33, 3007
d) Securities Premiwm Heserve ’
Bialnisteat e bepinning of the vear 20k LM O 200, ) Dl
Balunce ui the end of the vear (4] 200 AW 20,001 WY

Sevtirshies premiim reserve tessicd 1o pecond the prensinan on fsue o shares. The teserve |8 utissed in sccomdance with the provisions of e Ao

b} Hetwined Enrnings

Balaie o ihe hepnmang of the year (760,945 58) U7, T Ty
Lu:_u T b prerind (47 370043 (R = 1
ber comprelienive mgoene | (ki) (261300 (111500}
Halonce a1 the end of the year (1) (B10 82RO | TEL A5 58
Votal Hederyves mngd Surphis | © } A+Rp TR A Tl 45, 5K

LK) Ohher Heserves

Minech 31, 2004 March 31, 2017

a)  Eguity lnstrament of conspuund fnancial instroment

Balznce ag the begriming of e year 41408682 ERER T

Incresse | decrgase i equity instniment of compound financiel insmament |OCD8) (2R3, 9 6L} -

Balance at the end of the year (D) 1 5k&1 718 AR, 086,52
by Chber cguity

BHalanice at the beginnmg of e ven -

Expemses for mswe of exuity sharo cupatal [ 50U 4

Balance ut the pod of the vear (E) {4,800 100)

Tuotal Other Reserves {F) |D=E) L. 317018 41408652

Total (€+F) (B44.610.53) {326,888, T

{This g lus been inlentionally Teft hiank)
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MHNICHAMPION LEARNING S¥STEMS LIMITEDR
Ui VTIIMD LI P LC i eTs
Mobtx 1o the Finnncisl Sinteneents For the vesr esdled Mapeh 3, N
AT mmonnas i Bs: thousarids, e oflierwise anied |

Finaneial Liahilithes At
Murch §1, 2008 March 3. 2007 wpell 1, 2016
Nam - Curvent Rierow ngs Moo Current )
UNSECURED
Ciptianally Convertible Debiestures (00T ) A, E1 D SO0, O
Aded Accrued ireres 123555714 53,154 42
Latis? Bty wmpact i ONCIF ey 1o other equity [N AL ) (4 1408682
GO0 TR o S0 0GR AR
Lonns From Heddmy Company - - 24,7040 4
Deferred |epse Obligation - R4 7Y 104 136, |5
Tatal Mot - Cuirrent Borrowings = BT 25765 BTR.SM.15
IJ-T R N o ) A8 38 T3 H1,707 43
L]
Total dom - Current Borrve ings = B9, TH.92 i ML TS
Deferred Lease Ohligntion ks payble us follows: )
March 31, 3017
Future miminm lesse Present vabue of ninimiim
i Inierest elemeni o b
‘Wihien e than oise vear 41 £14 59 3590 16 JENIE T3
SLGISEY 3,500,146 AR R T
Deferred Lease (Hdigation is puvable as follows: April 1, 26
Futare minmimum bease Present value of minimm

Ineresg clement

ey s lease oy menix
Wiz bess tho e year R 10,375 54 61,707 42
Bty one and five year JLG1E &G 35500 1 48,2873
1ZWI,E§ L3865, 70 1973685

Terms of Optionally Convertible Debentures (0 Ds)

The Company hod ailaned 900,000 OC Tz agoregatng b 12 1,000 sich to the Holding compiny on May 27,2015, The 00T carry a copan e of 1.5% pa
payable anmunlly mnd matare or convert 16 equity duines wfler 5 years from the date of ssuance with & call and Pt ophion fo-sock premasure redempnon adter 36
pofiths from the date of alffsment. The said OCTs fave been converted indo equity amoaniing to Rs- S00.000.00 thouwsand and into foand aduiing b s
HH0, 0000 thensiand arud balance pmomnt af Rs 100,000 00 thoussnd has been repasd duris e yenr

As at
Current Borrosings Mlarch 31, 201K March 31, 2017 Agril 1, 2006
Unsecured
From ralmed gimes
Loy fram Holding Crimpany * 250 i 00 TTRO00 (0
Tatal ’ 25,000 . 2TH D))

* * Thie Cuinpiny lis cutstandini loan of Rs 250,000 thaisand (Marih 31, 207 vear 3015 from it hobding company, SITT Limied, o = odceest mate of 12% pa
The term af repaymment & upio March 31, 2009 or earhier on demand

{Tlas space bas bean mrenaienally keft blank)




MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
1N UMD 2000 LT ) 1678

Mot o the Finangnl Stutements for the venr ended Murch 31, 2008
LAl mnowns B thoumds, anless ntherwse stibed )

Akt
11iiE) Trndle Payahies March 31, 2013 Mirch 3, 2017 April 1, 3616
Current
Trade payahles 12470014 2ok 20 AN I 2
Tmade pasainles th retatesd partres 4R31233 1223 2,504 40
Tatal trade puyvalides 273033 44 274,530,711 264,590,260

Partes covered under Mivrs, Senall v Mediay. Exterpeiaes Ehevelopmen Ace, 2006 [MEMEL At for the year ended Maech 31, 2005 hefvie-Seen wléngified i the Basa of nfotsiuion aailibie with
M cimmpuyy Disclosures 28 pey Soczion 72 of th Micro, Small and Mediten: Enicegnisds Duveopemens (MSMETY Agt 2006 are s follews

Farticulars Mlirch 31, 2o & March 31, 2007 Ageril 1, 2006
aj the prmoipad amout and the mterest due theresn remaimng oemsd bo amye soopher i
11 Frincipal amonn : WD 277 462
i} Iracrids | Beon L] 433 o 26
b the mrssany of payrmt mode 16 the spplier bevond he sppointod day and the werest theroon, deirmg =
ACCOUI Yol
i Pringapal st 7149 1663 3% -
) hsteret thereom .

&) the: msoumt of rierest due sl pavabie for the vem of delay m making pesmend {uhinh beve been paid but
bevond ehe appoited diny dumiig he vear bt withonit addimg the marest specefiod amder thin Acs

A} thve st of everest necrusd and remsmng uinpeid o the end of sach accounting vy 0,601 1432 3
) amoust of furthes mitered reengimmg e and payable even i e stceeadimg yesrs, bl sk dnte when the
imrest dues abwwve e sctisliy pand vyt sminl] vastor

As ar

Mivy Enher Financial Linbilities March 31, 201% March 31, 2007 April ], 2016 March 31, 2018 Mareh 3, 2017 April 1, 2014
Nan - curremt Curreni
Spcuriry Diepesity Puyilbde 460 TS TR 1504 B0 -
:.'I"aIJJ.ITGut msturntses o Deforsed Lease Obiligaion: (refiés note 11 AR08 T S1T0742
Other Pryables * . - 3.252,43 31,743 45 45 05|
Total siher fnancisl labiblgie 4,650 35 7,951,109 5,504,800 26,5343 TRTTLIN 17 e A3
* Inclbbes prvable 10 mnplaven. )
12 Provisioos Asat
March 31,2418 Miareh 31, 2007 April 1, 014 March 31, J018 Mureh 31, 26017 Ageril §; 30Hig
Mgt - purrent Curremi 1
Provisiea for Ermplineee Benefin
Provwimion for Gty - . LA Sk 23597
Provaan for Comperssaned b B0 11 5.0 IR 5 133 1) a8 ;650 00
Tutul Pravisios LA LGy T8, 0 15,508 4% AMETRC) 7, 27
* Turmy.the year expense charged | eredited | smoartng o necount of connpensied st B (175 00 thoussod (March Y], 2017, Ra 1 466 Dhoysaradf i beofis oot m s de thousand
{Mignek 37, 2007 Re 335 thousand |
A
I3 EMbier Linhilivies March 31, B4 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016 Mnrch 31, 2018 Murch 21,2017 Apedl ), 2016
Bom - cirrent Current
Dleferred Revenug 517740 FEEET ENERE] 210042 43,001 27 Al dst &0
Advurces froen Cisioteers 61807 203414, 56 1771308 SEHES S 05551
Sratusrs Dves - 2151854 oL |0 4R 3045 K2
Tudal other liabBites &, 17744 Tl330| Jihhd7.38- GlL241.65 12588704 137,701 ,04

[ Thus space Has e misntsonsdly 12/ Blank)
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MINBOHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED

EIN: U 22NN PLO 111674

Notes to the Financkal Statements for the year ended Mirch 31, 2008

Reivinue From Operations

aule o Produocts @
Cogrpewiies and Training Materinl
“Humbwars & Accessoriies

Sale of Services

hher Income

Interest Income

Predin from Salbe of Cumeit Invelfment
Cimm on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)
Exvhanpge diffesence (net)

Crther Mon-Cipomating Insomss

Employyee Benefits Expenses

Salarws and Fenefis

Comntrrbutrom 1 Provident and ohes Funds

Employees Siock Option Expense
Welfareand (Mher gapanses

(T space hes boen miennomally lef hlank;

AT srnounts i Rs. thousands, wnbess utheronse suted)

Year ended

Mirch 31, 204 March 31, 2017

179,765 39 Ih8.543 1%
451601 |4 53,5100
AGT I 46,57 35
592,673.49 B6K,867.62
Year ended

Mureh 31, 2018 March 31, 2087

8468571 15 005 70
ST -
1 588,86 “BH a4
207 |8 &0
15083 (i H3g 1%
AL6RRST L3R
Year ended

Miirch 31, 2008 Margh 31, 207

297 053 90 394,649,17
11880 56 47235 59
42177 206573
RREL L 5 0030
204, 140.55 415003 40
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED

CIN: UT2200DL2001PLCITI6TS
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise staned)

Finance Costs

Interest Expensi
Other Horrowing Costs

Other Expenses

Equipment Hiring

Freight and Cartiige

Remt (net of recoverics)

Rates amd Taxes

Power & Fuel

Commurication

Legal and Professiona

Management Cost Recovery by Holding Company
Travelling and Converance
Prowision for Doubtful Debis

Bud debis Written off

Repatrs and Maintenance

- Plant and Machinery

- Buildings

- Uthers

Consumables

Security and Administration Services
Bank Charges '
Marketing & Advertising Expenses
Sundry Expernses

Payvment To Auditers

As Auditor

= Addit Fee

- Retmbursement ol expenses (inclusive of taxes)

Exceptional Items

Reversal of provision for doubtiul debis
Total

Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
57.911.95 105,090, 06
25000 1.275.96
bl 161.95 116.366.02
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
170041 45041
1141548 3.352.48
10672006 12.083.35
24 18E.80
2,170,935 2.506.23
558921 4.354,15
837225 9306 6
22, 145.85 27.R08.37
U532 2626625
30,056.71 3056360
2.660.59 .
1.830.23 A1
17901 168,54
236914 344320
13,213,380 24204 81
928,80 1. 12264
307 46 G612
599337 1,797,19
237695 155943
14984960 Iﬁﬁéi 175
Year ended
March 31, 2018 Msrch 31, 2007
483.00 590,00
8730 142,78
37230 73278
March 31,2018 Murch 3, 20017
- £.623.72
- 6,623.72

Dhiring the previous vear, the Company bad writien back Rs. 6.623.72 thousand on account of collections réceived from
customers against which provision were eréated in eurlier vears under the samc heasd.

W



MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: U72300DL2001PLCI11674
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{All amounts in Bs, thousands, unless otherwise stated)
11 Income tax expense
{a) Income tax expense Year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Current tax
Current gy on profits for the year 3.266.13 12:356.54
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods TS -
Total current tax expense 5,343.98 12.556.54
Deferred tax
Increase in minimurm aliernate tax credit {5.266.13) (12.536.54)
Total deferred tax expensebenefit) (5.266.13) (12,556,54)
Income tix expense 77.85 -

(b} Reconciliation of tax expense and the sccounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Year ended
March 31, 2018 Murch 31, 2017
Loss before Tax 47,242 58) (19.92% 88y
Tax a1 the Indian tax rate of (FY 20016-17 33.06% ) (FY 2017-18 33.06%) * & -
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in caleufating tagable income:
Adjustment for Toxes relating 1o carlier years TT.85 -
Income tax expense 7785 =

* Since there 15 loss, therefore no tax is computed.

{This :;pzti;c has been imtentionally lefr blank)




MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2Z200D L2001 PLCTT674
Notes ta the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{All amounts in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)
22 Fairvalue measurements

{i} Fair value hierarchy
To provide indication-about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels preseribed under the decounting standard explained below:

Level I: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using queted prices, This ineludes listed equity instruments, traded
bends and mutual funds that have quited price. The fair value of all equity instruménts (including bonds) which are traded in the stock
exchanges isvalued using the closing price dswat the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net asset value,
Level 2: The fair value of fnancial mstruments (hat are not traded in an active market (for exaniphe foreign exchange forward contraces)
i3 determmed wsing valuation techniques which natimize the wic of observable market ditd and rely us litle as possible on entity-
specific estimues. [f all significant inputs reguired to fair value an instrument are obsarvable, this imstrument is included in leved 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the sigrificant inputs s not hased v observable market data; the ingtrument is included in level 3. This i the
gase for unlisted cquity securitles; contingen! consideration and indemmification asset included in level 3.

The Company”s policy is 1o recognize transters into and trnsfers out of fair value hieraschy levels at the end of reporting period

(1i) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specilic valuation echniyues used 1o value Fmancial instruments inelude:

- The use of quoted market prices for similar instruments.

= The fair value of forward foreizn exchiange contracts is determined using Mark to Market Valuation by the respective bank at the
balance sheet date.

- The fair value of the remuining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis,

Financial instruments by category and hierarchy of measurement

As al

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 April 1. 2016

Amaortised cost Amortised cost Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 291,373, I 491.593.19 TOO284.03
Cash and bank btlances 83.802.73 154,552 86 GE.245 03
Other financial assets S0.930.89 9905925 236302 26
Total financial assets 426.106.78 T45.605.30 1.094.836.22
Finnncial liabilities
Bormowings 250,000, 00 609,228,97 B46, 76K ()
eferred lease obligation . AR.028.73 10973615
Trisde payables 27302346 274.540.71 268,350 20
Oither financial habilites 30.%90,77 IR 494.64 49,863.71
Total financial liabilities 553.914.23 970,293.00 1.274,758.006

Asof March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and Apeil 1, 20016, the fair value of cash dnd bank balanices, rade receivables, other curnent
financral assets and lrabilities, borrowings, rade payables approximate their carrving amount Jargely due to the short térm noture of
these instruments.

For other financtal assets and Habilities that are-measured at amortised cost. the carrying amounts spproximate the fair value.
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SMINDCHAMPION LEARNING Y STEMS LIMITED
CTM: U TXHHD LM RO 6T4
MNustes o the Finmncisl Staemsents for the vear ended March 30, 2018

14 Emploves Benefits
A) Defined Contribution Plans

(A1) amouris in B thitsinds, unless ot wise sited)

[he Uompany mukes conirbasion toowards Prowident Fund, Superanmenon Fusd and Pension Scheme 1o the defined contithition phins for eligitle

empies

The Company has charged the following costs in Centribution w Provident and Otber Funds in the Stavement of Profit-and §oss -

Partunlars

Emplovers” Conteibution to Provident Fund

Emplovers” Contribution @ Seporanniation Fund

Empoyers” Conmmiismnn 10 Erplovecs Pension Sclieme
Employers’ Contribeitin o Employse Mational Femsion System
Total

Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
L4760 425597
Toi T REO1S
£ 12¥n1 T
30 55 37254
9,695.71 12,443.59

The Coibnpiy has charged the following costs i Contribution fo Provident and Other Funds i the Statemens of Profin snd Loss for Koy Measapernil

Personnel:

Emmplovers” Comtribution s Provident Fand

Emplovers: Conmbution i Superannuation Fand

Emplovers Comtnbuticn tn Empky e28 Pension Bcheme
Emplovers” Contritition to Enployvee Manonad Pensicon Sysiem

B) Defined Benefil Many
L Gratuity Fead - Funded

Particulars:
i) Change in Present vadue of Obligation:-
Present value of obligation a5 at begimning of e yenr
Imtetest cost
Current service gost
Acquisition (eredit) | cost
Benefis pud from plan asses
Actuaril (zmn ) loss - experience
Actuarial (gam)! loss - frapsicial assumptions
Present value of obligation as af the year end

iih Change in saloe of Plan Asets
Fasr value of Plan Assets us-ar the begimning of the veus
Abquisition sdyustment
Expeceed retum on Plan Assets
Contributions
Benefits Pasd
Return o plan assets (preater) | legs than disoount rats
Fitir value of Plan Assets as a0 the end of the year

ity Amount of Asset! (Obligntion) recognised in the Balance Sheel:-

A il March 31, 2008
As o Narch M, 2017
Asat Apnl 1L 2016

iv) Gratuity Cost recognised (n the Statement of Profit and Lass:-
Particulars

Curment service cost

Imdirest cost

Expense recngnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended

Miarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

115 %0 — GR33

1] | 540 0

| 3 0 1500

14 ik e 04

JRD.9% JIFTTT

Asan

Margh 31, 2K March 31, 2017

#2605 86 FALE Ao

31002 446 #5

145200 1 248000

3 080 { Thd 103

{LATEN (2483 00

B9 00 (]
L7800 50 0

1091758 B.265.86.

A e

Mareh 31, 2R March 31, 2017

29,00 AT20 .00

% ol 1 1 Ly

17700 25 (H)

QTR - LETA

[ 1720 CIA8E 00
(1500 7.00

226200 302000

Fair valueof Flan Preseat value of Aswetsl [obligntion)
Assets av it the end of oblipation 4s at the end recognised in Balance
e wear of the véar St
2362 6 (RUCTIN  ] (HASE RE)
3,039 0 W05t 15,236, 86)
4, 720004 7 10557 (X385 8T
Year endeil

March 31, 2018 Murch 31, 2047

1452, 0 124000

1125 151 T

1.THE2S E301.T0




MINDCHAMPION LEARNISG SYSTEMS LIMITED
L CEN: UT2Z00B T2 PLC1 11674
Nantes s thie Finuockal Statements for the year ended March 31, 1018
(AN aimenunts in R thousands, nnless otherwise sated )

w1 Girutuity Cost recognised through Other Comprehiensive Tneomi:- Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Actuarial lozs - experience LSRN 1. 866,00

Agtuittil loss - fnancial assamptions. 1,748 60 45600

Reetirn an plan issets {greater) | loss than discount mte 15.00 (7040

Espense recognised throogh otber comprehensive loss P ] 131500

Asal

i) Assumptioas used in seevunting for gratuity plan:- Muarch 31, 018 Macch 31,2017 April 1, 2006

Daseount Rate [Per Annim) T 50% 700 1%
| 1% fior firse 2 visgrs,

Future Salary Incress LA &.00%

R thereafier

Estimatés of futine syfary merease consideréd i actuanal valuation, ukes o aeconnt inflision, - senioniry, prometon and other rlevan (actors such as
supply and demmimd in the emplevment msrke

wii} Investment details of Plan Assetsy-

The plan assels ane maistained with Lifie Insurance. Corporasen of India Gratoity Scheme The details of wwisament maintainéd by | il Insursnce
Corpormtion are nol wvaslable with the Company and Bive pit been disclosed

The espested return o plan asses is-derermined tonsidering severs! applicibie Faciors mamly the conensarion of plan e held, usscamd Ao of s
manageEment, hiskrical et of the retum on plan sesats

vl Sensitivity wnalysis _
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation 1o chimges i he selghied principal assumptons s

Imperet o defined benefit phlipstion

Cleatige in assumption  Increase bn assamption eerease i
Sxiumption
Murch 31, 2008 March 31, 2008 March 31, 2014
Descannt rate (500 (451 060} 4RS 1
Salury growih mmie (50 A79.00 1449 00
Withdrawal Tite %4 (380 10 IR200
Impact s defined benefit obligation
Change in assumption  Increase in asswmpiion Decrease in
Assumprion
Murch 31, 2007 Marih 31, 2017 Mavch 31, 2017
Dhscount rame .50 {31000y 13300
Salnry prowth faie 1 50% 13500 131500y
Withdrawal cate 5 0% L ) B2.00

The above sérsitivity analyses are based on & chinge in an ssamption while holding all other sssumgsions constant. In practice, ths i wnlikely 9 ocsur. and
chanyses i some of the sssumptions muy be comelated. Whan caleuletng thi schsitivity of the defined berefit obligation o siprificen actuarsl wssumpli
the same method {presedt vilue of the defined benefit obligation galoubised with the progecesd anit credit method ot thee enad of the reposting period) his been
apphied as and when calewlating the defined benefit lisbility recepnised in the kalince sheel

i1x} The major eategoriesof plan wssets sre a3 follows:

March 31, 2008 March 31, 217 April 1, 206
Sehisie of insurance - comvantional produicts 1008 10 1131w

Risk exposiare

Theegh s defined benefit phims. the Company. 18 exposed to o number of rnisks, the mos sighificant of which are markel volatility, chanpes in initmion,
changes in imigrest rages, fsing Irmg:i-i!y, chunying eonnontic envimonment, régilatory changes.ete. The Company ensares tha the investment positons arc
marmigeed within an-zseet and habidiny maching famework that hos beon developed 1o achieve investments which are in line with the obbizations nder the
emplines banofil pline Within thes fromesnrk, the Company's asset-labeliny muiching ohjective i 10 mawch -assets 10 (e obligaions by tmweating in
securities to match The benifl pevments as they Gl due.

The Company actively montors bow the-durition and the expeoted vizld of the investmans are mitehing e s4pecied cush outflows arising from employes
benefit abligations. The Company has 01 changed the provesses used 1 matage its naks from préviods peninds Arvestments wre well diversified. such that
faluie of nsy smgle mvestment should not fave meterial impact on the vorall lovel of sssets:




b1

fd =

bt —

MIN I:I(_'HA_M.PiUN LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMTTED
CIN: UT2200DL2MN PLCTT 1674
Nates for the Finnclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(AR amaints in R thousends, imless oherwie spted)
Eurnlitgs Per Share Yenr endeil

March 31, 2018

March 3§, 24017

Logs attribentable 4o Bguity Shaseholders {4) 147370 43)
W average number of Equity Shies outstanding dunn the year ¢ Nog - (H) 51040 75
Kol Valoe of Equity Shares (Hs | ]
Basic Earmog / (loss) per Shaoe(Rs (A8) 10
Add- Eifeut of Porentinl Dilarive Share (Seiny Optionally Comeermnhle Usbentures | -
Wetishied average shases outstancing considersd for detéemining Dilured Eamitigs per Share (Naoy ) - (0] 51,840 TS
Addd - Effect of Interest o Cpfronally Convenible Debentanes, net of tax (D) =
Profit{less s afler considenng intreased earniin of Dilutive sharest B (A =T (4737043
Momimal Yalue of Eauty Shares (Rs. 14
Difhacd Edrmimges (asst per Shure (Ks ) (EC) (LR 1

Retuted Party Traasactions
Relutes) party relatiomstily where eantrol exists:

Haldag Company - NITT Limijed

. Fellow Subsidizries

MU Instihite of Finmnce Hankmg and Insursnce | rmmng Limed
BT v Jyol Limited
MIT Instilute of Process Excellence Lomned

NI USA fnc, LISA

NI Limbed, LK

I Makaysia Sdn Bhd, Mabiysia

T Wisse Afreea Limited

WUT GC Lirmted. Munsrits

WIT (Trelond ) Listited

MUT Learnmg Sobutions (Cenadn ) Limnted )

Eaple snternitions] Inssitute Ine. USA (we [ lsnuary 3, 2018)

Eaple Traming Spain. 5 1. 11

NIT Antilles NV, Netherfands Antillea {liguddsisad w e f November 23, 3017

BT NOT Indooesin, Indonesia

HIIT China {Shaaghai) Limited, Shanghs )
MET W Servce Outscareing Traintng School, China (Memosardurm of Undersmnding was oxceuted to sell on April 1, 2007}
Wi §IT Information Techadlogy Censuling Limbed, Chim dagrosment to sell antered on March =31, 2018:

Su Ehou NITT Informuthon Technobery Consulfing Limited, China

Chusgarbou MNIT Information Technabagy Consulting Limsed, Chita

Zhangiiagany SIIT infirmmation Services Limited, Chirm

Chngdas NATT Informasian Technobomy Company Linnited, Ching (closed woe § Jiisiary 31, 2018)

12 Chengong NIIT information Technolngy Compmarny Limited, China

Chengipng An Bao Edaeation Consuliing Limited, China

Chongging NI Education Consuling L aemied, Ching

WIFT (Nin¥ia} Edeeation Techmiboiny Compuny Limited, Ching (ncorpimied we f Say 19, 2017)
Daadeng ST nformitson technelogy Co . Limiied, China iclosed woel Ctober 25, 20017

Cluterhou NITT mformation techivology consalting Co . Limitod Ching

NIT (Guzhow) Edueation Technology Co,, Limited, China

o Other related partics with wiom the Company has tragsucted

Ky Manugerial Personnel
Comvan Diebren - Cheel Esxecutive Oificer
Urmresh Karnpr Gl - Chief Financial Offjeer

Firties in which the Key Managerial Personned of ihe Holding Company are interessed
BT Foundasion {formery kpown = WUT Education $ociely)
NITT [rrversity

{15,924 88)
19 s 172
Hil

(105}

T 001D,
L Lt (472
AT GTE D
A0 4
1o

| 142%)

Key Mansgement Personnel compensation
March 31, 205

Mareh 31, 2017

Sicrt-terin enmiryes bemadin: |2 6 S5
Post-umployment benodies L9

1R eln el
34472

Toral compeasation 1A 4287

11, 158,65

Terms and conditions

Tramsscticibs wilh rekited parties. durmg the year were basid on Zermoa that would be salble 1 partigs All mumsacticns were: radi oo mormal gomimegzzil

rermms Ect comdinons sad af mickt s
The nverge inersst mie i the hormwings darmy e wear s |3% (Mirch 21 HH T woy 9 - 12%)
Anl mn-iundnu Talnnces are wirsecured anid ire repaaynble m o cash




MHNDHCHAMPION LEARNING SYETEME LIMITED
C1%: UTE2R0L 200 FLE 11 18T
Nates 1o the Financial Stotements fok thy yeir ended Mareh 31, 2018

It Helated Party Truasactbons Conid. )
I, Details of significant trawarctions with the Bebated Partiey curried out in ordinary cours; of busines:-
(AN amiiis B thousands, wnlesy stherwise stited |
Parties in which Key

. Munagerinl Ky
Maiture of Transactions ll'lnldin-g l-elh_w I"‘-tmnltd:r}!&iﬂil\g H,@],] Total
Company Subshdinries P
m aay ire Personnel
Imteres ted
Kale of Goods- Revete - . 198855 - 1,988,63
i - {2,168 053 i g} ] - 14321.31)
Sale ofserices- Revenue - = ; > %
. - (79834 . (795 31
Hecovery of Expenses Froan 109 . ] - o 4%
(491 .33) [4ERE 32y - - (#9145
Prrchase of Gaoods & . f 2 _
- {41 0y - - (4] o8y
Managemient Cost Recovery- Diher bapenses. 22521 90 - . - 2252180
{25,560.40) - - - (25 56040
Corporate Goumnies Charges- Ciher Expenses 2500 - . - 225000
(1.275.96} - - - {1, 275.96)
Fecovery of Employer Benefis expenses by . - . - -
£300.90) - - a: 35 oy
Recmvery of Expenses [y [ 555617 - . - L3556, 17
(I T.280.56) - - - [ 17,280 %6}
Recovery of Professionnl & Techrical Oumioincing Explnises by - - - - .
14 58} = . (458
Remureration o ke Mipmgperml Personne] . = - | 3,028 67 1342867
- . - (11,155 85} (L1155 65}
Ingerast Expense- Frgme Cost 25,1 55 - . - 25104 %5
{22.556:6%) o2 - - L2 256.05)
Issiiiice of gty share capifal S0L000 {0 - - - S 00 0
D Reépand OO0 8 = - - 1706 G i
Lesan Faken 30 000000 - . - EILTREVAETT
) (TR 0000 . - - {78, D0CL 00 )
I omen Repasd 50,000 (8 = . = SO0 D0
(385 T ) - - - {388 Hab oy
e Details of outstanding balmnees with related pariies:
Partics in which Key
; Managerknl hey
Farticutnrs r‘:“:p:fy Sl-l-::l:.lh:rli‘! Personmel of Holling  Managerial Tutal
i . LiHnpiny are Personmel*
interested
i) Puyahbes
Munmch 31, 2008 I - - JOT53 48,629 K4
Mrirch 31, 2017 { 10T R (43.25) - (22 it 110,442 88
Aprif 1, 2016 12181 50) - - 18T AT 3T
Hy Receivabbos
Ml X1, 2018 756200 . - - 7562 (0
March 31, 2017 (1059 19 = {2249 1) * (3.309,00)
Apnl | Hile {17713 (2L735) (991.43) L1.55) [XRSTN1Y
lidy Loan payables
Mareh 31, 2018 2RI, FI (K . - 50 {0 0
Margh 31, 2017 - . - . . -
April 1, M6 {307,700 i) . - . L3007 T ooy

Provioss year figures ang grven in pareniheses:
* included 1 other prynbles

H. The Compeny bas unavisled coodit facilities of Nil {Previdas year Ha. 30,000.00 thowsand | ot of the fimed based working eapasal limis of the Holdmg campany

L The Ceantpany his svibed corporie puarmntes issugd by Hedding company of B, 050,000 00 thabsapad (Previoas yeir Bs 430000 060 thousand b for sworking capiul
ltrute
Wb The Hodding company fus comminied operationid and financl supports 10 the Coanpany




MINDUHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UT2200D1L2001 PLC111674

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2018
(AL amounts in Rs, thoustnds, unless otherwise stated)

27 Segment Information

The Company is engaged in providing Education & Training Services in o single geography. Based on “Management Approach™ , as
defined in Ind AS 108 —Segment Reporting, thie Chief Operating Decision Maker (COBM) evaluales the performance and allocates
resources based on the analvsis of performunce of the Company as a whole, 15 operations dre, therefore, considered 10 constitule o
single segment in the context of Ind AS 108 — Segment Réporting.

28 Leases

9

3o

Operating Leases:
The Company has entered into leases for office premises and émplovee accommoditicns which are cancelable at the aption of the
Company by giving the requisite notice. Aggregate payments during the year under operating lcases are as shown hereunder:

Piarticulars Year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
In respect of premises* G55 84 10,732.36
In respect of equipmenis®® 129:55 36364
In respect of Vehicles Thé.22 485,35
Total ' 10,801,61 12,083.35

* includes payvment in respescl of premised for office and emplovee sceomodation,
** includes payment in respect of computers, printers and other equipments,

The Compary intemally develops software tools, platforms and content/courseware. The management estimates that this would result
in enhanced productivity and offer mare technology based leaming products’ salutions to the customers in future, The Company is
confident of fts ability w generate futsre economic benefits out of the abovementioned dssets, The cosls incurred during the year
towutds the dévelopiment dre a5 follows;

Year ended
Description March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening Capital Work-in-Prognss 137067 -
Adid:-Expenditure during the year
Salary and other Emplovee Benefits 093288 1, 710,45
Professional & Technical Outsourcing Expense 26.312.33 20,504,410
Rem 20246 48067
Other Expenses 288.01 L&)
Less:-Imangible Capitalised during the vear - (21,443,75)
Closing Balance al the end of the vear 38,206,358 1, 370,67

The net worth of the Company is significantly croded as at March 31, 2018, However based on the fiture business projeetions of
School business and the future outlook of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company are confident thut the Company is
expected o witness improved performance in following vears, Further, the holding company NITT Limited has committed ogrerational
wnd financial supports 1o the Company, Accordingly Company's Financial Statements have been prepared on an going concern basis,




MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN: UTZ200002001 1PLOC 111674
Notes 10 the Mnoneial statements for year ended March 31, 2018
31 Transition to lnd AS

These wre the Compeiny’s Hrst finantial stlements prepared m secordence with Ind A%

The actounting policies set oot in nate | have been applied m prepanng the financel satements R the vear endid Maich 31 2008 the Comparitive
anfrtion presented in these finaneial sateienty for the year ended March 3 L. 2017 wnd i the piwguration of an-opening Ind AS balures sheet at April 1,
2016 (The company's. date of tmnstzon) In preparing is opening Ind AS balance shieet, Thee company his adjusisd the amounts reponied previcusly in
financial suerments prepared in secondinee with the secounting standards nonfied nder Compantes {Accounting Sandards) Kuis: 2008 | amended) and
other rebevant provisions of the Agt | previous GAAP or Indian GAAT)

A explenation of how the fmosmon from previous GAAP 10 Ind AS hos afTected The company”s fingncidl position. fnencial pérfommunce and cush Hows
im et et i the (oliowing tubles und notes

A Exemptions snd excepiions avaibed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 161 optional sxemplions and mandatory exesptions applicd m the (st from frevions GAAP o Ind A%

Al Ined AS optional exemptions

AL Deemed cost

Ind &S 101 permits 3 fiesi-time sdopter to elodt i continue with the-carrving valie e all of its properry, plant and equipment a5 reeigrised i the financal
statements 6 a1 the date of transition 10 Ind AS, mensured as per the previous GAAP and usi that s its dedmod cost as at the date of transition 4fter making
heegseary adjusiments. THis exemptivn hs ilse been used Tor intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Asseiwand imvestment propety covered by
Ind A 40 Investment Propertics.

Avcordingly, The company s elected W measure all of its properry, plint and equipment. uningrhle assets and mvestment property ot their previous GAAP
crving vidue

Aul2 Lepses

Appendin C to Ind A5 17 réquires un entity to agsess whether a sontract or armangsnsent contains u lease: Tn secordance with Ind AS 17, (s sstessrient
should be carried out ot the inception of the corract or wrrungement Ind AS 101 provides an option o make thes assessment on the byses of facts and
EMCUMSIICSS existing at the date of wangmon W Ind AS, except where the effect is sxpeceed . be net materl. The company hits elected w0 apply this
exemption for such Contritsirmn geroents.

A 13 Fair value measarement of financil assets or Gabilities at fnitial recogaition

Ind AS: B8 resuuares 1o initially recognize finenchal skets il liatilities at fair viloe and if the farr value differs Trom transsction price, the difference &
recognized sy giin o |oss. The Company has slected iapply these requerements of mitsel recopmitinn prospsctivaly o mansastitng entered on or afiee the
idate of transition

A2 Inid AS mandatory exceprions

A2 Estimntes

An eniity's estimies 0 accordancd with Ind ASs ot the date of transition o Ind A% shall be cpnsisuenn with sstimntes mads (o the samic dale in eeordings
with previous GAAP (after adjustments o reflect any diffetence in accounting policies), imless there 15 ehjective evidence mmm_e_ sstimbes were I ermor
Ind AS estimatex as 3 April 1, 2016 are consistert with the estimutes a5 at the samia date made in conformity with previols GAAF The curnpany misde
eitimates for follovwing e in accordance with [nd A% it the dute of wensstnn us these wese not requared under previcus GAAP

« Imprairment of financial assets hosed on experted credit loss medel.
A.2.2 Classification and measurement of financial assets

Il AS 0] reduines an entity 1o assess clissification and measurement of financial szt on the basis of the ficts and cucumstancss thal exstat the dute of
irpsiton by Ind AS

{This space has been intentionally et bdank )




AT ELANIPTON LEARN NG SYSTEMS LIMITED
Cn: D722 D2 P L1 1674

Macen b e Giaweinl statemtnts for yiae ended March 31, H018

31 Trunsitina w Ind AR [ Cam)

B

lind A5 101
Ind AS

Reconeilintion of equliy as st date of transition March 35 2007 and April a1, 2086

Moles

ARSETSH
Mom-Current GEEely
Property, plant il egmprierd
Inenngibids Limets
Entamgibde Asiets imder Developmeni
Finangial Azges

Trude recehvabics

Cither Firsncial Asseis
Dieferrod Tax Adsetd
Oiher Soa-L et Assets.
Total Mon-cirrehl pasets

Current Axsets
Tl
Fraengml -\sm
Traile Rectivables
Lnsh amid Rank Palances
Cazh and Bank Balamcey otber tham above
Ehligr Fumneial Asseis (i
Ciher Currens Aassts in
Totil Currem hasels
TOTAL ASSETS

L)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Eaputy Share Cagpeal

Ohier Equisy

TOTAL EQUITY

i

LIAUILITIES
Mon-Current Linbilities
Fimarcinl Lishtivics

Fearrorwy s

Ohthir Fanancaal Linkilitics
Chiner Maow-Cinent Leabilites
Proay st

(]

Cwrremt Llathdfigie
Fiancial Lahilibes
Brormowhiips
Trmde Paynhles
Ulither Foancasl Linhaligies
Proiin
Oibrer Cammrert Linhilsines

(EhiE]
[

TIFTAL

(ANl smounts w K& s ands, nless othirwie sintedy

Fequres i ety I reconcie eguivy, ol comprehersve incnme snll cash lows for prioe penods. The followmy fahles reprasent 1be poeoncHintens from preaos GAAR ©

Mureh 31, 2047 Agiril 1, Ta16
Previeis GAAP* Adjustment INIFAS  Previom GAAPS Adjustinent IN-A%
RO TR T £ 0300 §3 53,959 015 = 41,050 0%
41,628 &7 IR BLbGT 10 - B 14
|70 67 137067 & = .
27T - 1.733.70 T, it 54 . TAAER 3
630 56 1,630.36 GETUR - 3448 93
| 2458 34 X 13,554, 34 il . .0p
TE o0 43 . TZMEAG 57,160 80 - 57, 14090
19331543 141807 172,200 8] = T8 8]
14.673.08 - |, 623 08 1T EAT 44 = 17137 44
ST ,847.87 (229TR.0%) A%8_ RO AN TAL N (26,131 50) Tit 204 0%
154,504 75 4 13,594, 75 GTHG| B2 ' - GRG0 R2
35511 2 IS et - EL T
BRI fath, 4018 %4 G ATH RS Lol 202,004 I&4,641, 70 230,851 83
535558 (34.525.43) 26030, 16 05,753 3] 174, 44 6K} 21,640 5
T, T | B,105,34 T4 908,45 RS 5,64 4, B 1 LOSE 10545
970 FA53 B, B854 G78.19.87 LI6L208.48 [T 1, 26,4050
1% 640,72 . HLEAD T2 e ek 72 i 1906441, 72
{539, 208,37} 1T 420 86 (326458 TR {593 405 0) &R0, 14 IASELEE)
{448 647,500 113,435 45 (136,215, 04) {40107 4.30) ZREANH 14 {1 L5474 )
Q00 01 010 (2% 77108 09,208 92 S, 75H0.00 (A5 27 B, 79673
T8 e = 7,750.19 1 - 4,408 80
TR ! 1053 PREAT 34 . M ed73E
| 1300 - 13,00 RAR) - 228 00
914,897.20 (290771 s B2, 126012 B4 AR |5 (IE005. 0Ty G4 AT
- a . b ] , el RUHT
A HETI . TR0 T T4 3500 . L e
20814 35 5195182 TR TTLIN 24,100 59 63,564 74 10T, s 13
11,141 %0 - (IR Tkg 47 A T 0407
91,362 90 34454 14 125 85T 111,954 84 5.4 30 1377001
TR B4 96 490311 T T 452 6l K9, ki 0 08,307 54
97011458 B.108.34 SR BT [T .81 1526

*The previous LAAR Beeres have been reclapsificd to comfarm i Ind AS presemmen reguirements for the purpass of s Nt

{This space has been meentimally el blank)




B2 Reconciliation of tits] mmpnhmi-ﬂ-:me for the year ended March 31,2017

INCOME

Revenue fram Dperntions
Tither Lo

Tnial Hevem:

EXPENSES

Purchase of swck-m-trade

Chiry | Encecaise ' Decmase g Invenion
Frploves Benefits Evpense

Frofesisapal & Technioal Uuliourcing Experisey
Fenunes Uikl

e intitia i, Advartsition Expenses

(et Expenses

Tistal Expenses

Frofiv { Loss) before Exceptionad stemi and Tax

Excepticmal wens.

Frofit before Tuy

Tax expeemse:

= Curren| Tax

- Uheforred Tax

Prafii / (loas) for the year

CHher Comprebensive Low

lems thmt will nor e reclassified subspguently 10 profit or
loms

Remeassemes of the pet defiped bersfi
llnkdbsty | pssct

Tatal sther comprebonsive bss, net of tas

Tatal comprehenshee income ¢ {less) for the vear

fapkd ¢
(3T

(U
[CE

im)

(AN ansowmts m Ha, thousaimds, wiless delierwise s}

Frevious (s AAP* Adjustment IND-AS
(4850 111208888) Rol RET 62
|;233.57 12,718 52 1395300
e () (FHBEY By RELEN0.T)
108 0RE- 5 (LA TR
241439 251439
45,342 75 RETR T TEEE T
033495 . 3393
IESETHD AORIHED L S 002
TH. 4O 133,928 90 549, 56, (1M
Z3REI00 (o3 0. 24 I 512 75
R (26,5:48.67) B0 37341
4, R 0 [ 73,253,680} |26, 552 401
6,633 T = 6,033 T2
53,326.51 |73,255.64) (19,925, 5K}
1255544 - 12556 54
(17 83054 . {12,556 54)
53:3T6.84 {7255, 09§ (19,028, 85}
CVES, Dy (331500
5 (LS00 {21500
552481 | TESTEN 122,243.55)

“The presious (TAAF fignres hive been rechssed to conform b Ind Al presentution requirements for the purpase of this Note.

(| This spce by been tbenbionally leff bank §
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SINMPCELAMPEON §ERRING SyeTEMY CIMETED
AN LT 200 P R
Histurs nd tha Arimicianl atatiomenis for period eded W 30, 2ms

Traan |t ba bl A% Cont)

. Fersmciliatian of suial oquily i o Mares 30, 3017 and Apel 1, 2018

4

Parigrniam

Trtl equity {Shareblien’ fanils) u per p
Al L) @ Adjuktoest wniler Bnd A%
Changs m paréemn of rcdamon urmmﬁudaﬂmw:ﬁﬂm ikt (i of velaied
Fmr&mwﬂd i pde fesmrabies a8 per e pecied =esde ke

Waigritwn of shate bl ettty measnned ot i value

Thstuanilmg al fnng tems irmte e b,

Retopnun of fezmcy fease oligaton )

Recegnitin ol gy and fmilny componen m o compuund francil instruman

Tatal sepuity s per bnd A%

GAAP

Recomeibuion of pral gsenpreh
Pritididars

meeme lar ihe yvear ended March 51, 2007

Wi proit alber tex 5 seperted wsbir previous Indisn AP

Add fiLeps) 1 Adjmstment ier bl AS

Rt of four-2nigdoyinen) beniedit abdpnnions

Adlititional deprecaabon on el iscogniss)

Heveral of b squniisanmy

Cramgs inpattans of racogniting'of revenis hesed o hentifad performmnce oblgations dee ol vl
FPraovsion for spechat cretn kisses on e Emgtrabies

Eitplon e stk npnon exparie trcopgased bered on lar cilie medsed
Diburiting ol ong eni trulé secayisklo

I!mw-rwn of sty wod bty compestess o 8 sinmponed Bl s
mnﬁ«mﬁm nn defired pavments hetalities

eribls.ﬁlu.-pu Ind A5 (A

M'ﬂlﬂpﬂh{:ﬂlﬁ L. et o Lt L

Bt arnan of posi-amploy men bmglh ohbgalims

Tutal fomigretensve luks as reponed mder nd A5 (4B

Berenriliation af esuih Nines G iBe year ended March S0 2007
Partlan

M sash Nerw frooi openting sciilics

Stz flems i myesting act it

Mo e lene E‘mmtiwnq BCiIvEies

S s dotreran m cash wul cmb eqonwenes

Cash and cash sparlonts as m Aprd |, 2%

i arid ot oot st af s Miaich 3, 2917

AN s i P, thousands, wdess-ofhes e stasd)

5128 A Diia
(EEETT o PR
(AT 44879 Erds R
(2L, 3, |6 TITATH Kt
LA AT L8 R
CROTU AT (ERTINAL
[HEE {65 5 [LE-ETE 5T
— meMsETe (MMLRLLEE)
Viar wuiderd
Murch 31, 2017
[
LR TR
LR Wi
1,054 00
VL ETH AR
3R
(2003 T4)
1Az
R LS|
LT
{14,955
{53
- oy
E INDEAS
AT ETI T A SHLATT R
[EERC TR 14,281 il (31,60 55)
(333,337 19 [TLIE1 3 (a3 52
86, 702.93 . BTG
AT AT RTRR Al
58 Ul TH (B2 558
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MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMTTED
1N 1TZ2O000 2 PLO 1674
Nt the fenzmeinl statements for vear ended March 31, 2018
{All amountd in M thousands, anbess othemwies smaied)
Trassition do Ind AS [ Cont.)

o Nevtes 1w first time adoption

i) Re-measurements oF post-cmployment beoefin uliligntions

Under Ind AS, resmexsiremnints e sciunril gaing nd Inseés and the returm on plan assety, excluding amounts included m the net mberest experse on the net defined bereht
hability are reeegmsed inother compretiensive income instead oF profit or logs: Uinder the: provisss GAAF, these re-measurements were formimg part of the profit or loss for the
yedr As g fisult of this change, the profit for she year nded March 31, 2017 ineressed by s 2,315 thousand. There is po impnct on the intd eowity @ w1 March 2017

b Provision for expected credit lnses on trude receivables

A per Ind AS 109, the Company is requared to opply expeoied eredit boss maodel for recosmising the aliowanee foe doabtiul detis &s & sesalt, (e allowanee Foi dodhil debis
creased by R 21 360 1R thonsand as ot March 31, 2087 (Apnl 01, 2006 — Bs 1743883 (housnd), Consenuently, e total equtty 05 at barch 31, 2917 decreased by fts
21365 K thousand ( Apnl OF, 2006 — Ry 17,438 84 thousaod ) mnek profic for the vear ended 31 March 200 7 deortated By 3. 3,930 34 thousand

o} Employes stock aption expense recognased based on Gair valee method

Under the previgus UAAP, the cost of equity-senied emphayie shire-hised plan were recogmiscd using the intnnge value method. Under bnd AS. the cost of equiy sefbed share-
based pla is recoptied based on the Ty value of the options a5 at the grnt dute. Conseuently. the amoun| recognised in share gpiion oustanding sceor mereased Ty 1y
AN thoasanad a5 48 March 31, 2007 ARl €1, 2016 Ra. 1RSK33 thousand) The prafin for the year ended March 31, 201 7 decrersed by Rs 2868 74 thousand,

it} Fair valuaoon of long term financial assets

Under the previens GAAY, lang-term reocivables were rcorded af therr tansaction vadue Under tnd AS, ol finanginl assets:should mivelly be recogmised ar fase value,
Arcordingly, the Compeny has fair valued the long-term recervables under lnd A% Diffetence betwiaen the fiir valie and transaction value of the receivables hus b recopgiised (n
relaied earmings a5 88 the frnsition date Comsequent fo this change, the smount of reocrvables docreased by Rs 597937 thouspnd as st March 31, 2017 (apel 1, 2006 R
1271932 thousandl The grofit G the vear ended March 31, 2017 increased by By, 12, 71952 thowsind

éd Recopniticn af equity snd lnbitity compoaentin o com pound fisancal instrument

Under the previows GAAR, convertible debentures sssued wore reconded at their transaction valus: Under Ind AS 32, compound snstraments | & finascisl instraments that-coritiie
bt cquity e lighility cormpanents should be reengnised separmely imo s squity snd lisbility component on imitial tecognitisn

Accardingly, the Compiy has sphil fhe optoonally comertible debeniures inl eqinty and lubiity components. Consequent to this chiange. the smount of equity nereased and by
bt homrrrivings decrensed by Bs 414.086,82 ihousand as at Morch 31, 300 7 and Apnl 1, 216

I inder the-previous GAAFR, labilites were reconded at their rsacson valde. Under Ind A3, the liafiliy carmpotnt shoudd be récognised af fur value, Areardingly, the Campuny
has-Fiir vt 1he lubslity component uades Ind AS. Consequent to this change, the amount of fibility component increased by Ky 12331574 thovsand as at Marck 11,2017 |
April |, 2016 Rs 53,730 82 thowsani) - The profit for the visr ended March 31, 2007 dooreased by B 90, 16092 thousand

1 Kecognition of fisance lease oliligation )
Certain aquipments i privided B govemimer sehisols Shder BOOT model. Under the previous GAAT, these gssels were treared @ 4 opemting bease Whiriss under [ A%,

such ssscts are teated ws finance Jease and accordingly the Company has recognised o finance fease abligaton for the same Conseguent to this change, the amount of harowing

meneased by 48.028.73 thousand & o1 Apnl [ 20106 and the smount of otber firanctal habilities morsased By Ry 45028 75 thousand as at Maseh 31 2077 {Aprl |, 206 Ra
Bl TU7 40 thoasand ) and the nmount of prepaid expanses decseased by Ry 3502542 thousand &b w1 March 30, 007 (April 12006 Rs 74, 10568 thousaady, The other expeEs on
seenunt oF lease renthl ehorges far the year ended March 31, 200 7 detreasad by Bs 0723588 thousand and finasee eust on scomint of recosgrition of finance leess chligsion for
the year ended Muarch 31, 1017 increased by s, 10,677 91 thosisiend nnd depregiation for the year ended March 31,2017 decrsased by B 13,925.90 thousand.

£) Impact of change in revenae recagnition

The Company's contrpers with sustomers inghiede multiple clenrents for which ther 1= 4 speaific pedanee wirler Ind AS 18 Accordingly, there: his Besn change i the tming of
revenue reeogmition. O quent 1o thes chisge, the atmount of defermed revenue ingreased by By 36 494 14 thousund os ot Morch 38, 2007 (Apnl 1, 2006 Bs 75,744 20 twsind )
and amount o wibitled revenie intreased by Rs BRA08 84 thousand as a1 Mirch 31, 2007 (Al 1, 2016 Ba. 164,641 79 thousand ) and amourt of trade recevibles moeased by
R 437047 thousamd usoat Murch 31, 2007 (Apnl 2016 R_Bl__ll,UE_J'm Ihnlﬂa.nl_:lh The sevenue from apersnons for the year ended 2¢ at March 31, 201 T-decremsed by R 112618 88
thesamd.

b} Reszined earning
Hetained camings nsal Mazeh 31, 20017 and Apn| |, 2016 has beon adjusted comssguent io-the above Ind AS fransition sdiustments,




MINDCHAMPION LEARNING SYSTEMS LIMITED
) CIN: UT2200DL2000 ML C 1L 1 1674
Nabes to the Anancial statements for year ended March 31, 2008

32 The comparanve lisancial information of the Compeny for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the transition date opening Balance
sheet as at Apnl 01, 20 6 inchoded in these Ind AS fifansial stilements, are based on the previously 1ssued financial statemients
prepared in secordance with aceounting principles gererally accepled in Iniia and were wudited by 4 firm other tham 8 K. Batliboi &
Associntes LLP, s sdjusted for the differcnces in the accounting principles adopied by the Company on ransition 1o the Ind A5,

Signatures 10 Motes '1' to 32" of these Financial Stitements

Forand on bebalf of the Board of Directors of
Mindchampion Learning Syetems Limited

Tk

Amil Roy
Dhirector
MM - 07138197

M Crurngram
Duater: May 11, 20148

Chiet Financil Officer

Place. Glunigram
Drare: Mav 11, 2018
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PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

16" Annual General Meeting — July 11, 2018

Name of the Member(s):

Registered Address:

Email:
DP ID No: HEEEEEEEEEEEEEN
FolioNo. /ClientoNo: || | | | | [ [ [ [ [ [ [] ]|
/\We, being the member(s) of .............. Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:
1) Name
L P
I E-mail 1d: oo, Signature
or failing him/her
2) Name
L P
e E-mail I oo, Signature
3 Name or failing him/her
L P



as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 16" Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on Wednesday, 11t day of July 2018, at 9:30 A.M. IST.
at the registered office at 8, Balaji Estate, first floor, Guru Ravi Das Marg, Kalkaji, New Delhi-
110019 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolutio Resolution No. of | Vote (Optional see Note
n Shares 3)
Number. For | Against
Ordinary Business
1 Adoption of the Audited Financial

Statement of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2018,
together with the Reports of the
Auditors and the Directors thereon.

2 Appoint  Mr. Viay K  Thadani
(DIN:00042527) as Director, who
retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

3 Appoint Mr. P Rajendran
(DIN:00042531) as Director, who
retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business

4 Ratification of remuneration of Cost
Auditor
Signed this ................ dayof ...........oooeeiin. 2018
Affix
. Revenue
Signature of Member ... Stamp not
less than
. Re.1
Signature of Proxy holder(s) ..........cccoooiiiiiiinn.
Notes:
1. This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed

and deposited at the registered office of the Company, either is person or through post,
not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A person can act as proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total
share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person
as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for, against or abstain column
blank against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as
he/she may deem appropriate.

4. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he
SO wishes.
5. For the resolution, explanatory statements and notes, please refer Notice of the Annual

General Meeting.



ATTENDANCE SLIP
16" Annual General Meeting — July 11, 2018

DP ID S B

Folio No. / Client ID No. LT T T T T T T T T T ITITITTT ]

No. of Shares held :| | | | | | | | | |

| certify that | am a member/proxy for the member of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 16™ Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Wednesday, 11" day of July 2018, at 9:30 A.M. IST. at the registered office at 8, Balaji Estate,
first floor, Guru Ravi Das Marg, Kalkaji, New Delhi-110019.

Name of the Member :

Name of the Proxy

Signature

Note: Please complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the meeting ven




